
VIA DHL 

Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

FL - CLEC LLC 

2000 Corporate Drive 

Canonsburg PA 15317 

Tel 724.41 6.2000 

Fax 724.416.2353 

October 23, 2007 
0 
-.J 

, 
W .. Attn: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 

850.413.6770 
. .. - 

i _.’ 

RE: FL - CLEC LLC’s Application for Authority to Provide Alternative Access 
Vendor Service and Competitive Local Exchange Telecommunications 
Company Service within the State of Florida 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Enclosed please find for filing an original and two (2) copies of FL - CLEC LLC’s 
Application for Authority to Provide Alternative Access Vendor Service and Competitive 
Local Exchange Telecommunications Company Service within the State of Florida along 
with a check in the amount of $650 for the filing fee ($250 for the AAV and $400 for the 
CLEC). 

In addition, I have also enclosed an extra copy of this letter to be date stamped and 
returned to me in the enclosed, self-addressed, postage prepaid envelope. I CMP ,- 

COM - Please note that while FL - CLEC LLC does not currently have any financial information 

CTR - therefore, I have enclosed its latest 10-Q. 
ECR - 
GCL - 

as noted in Exhibit 3, we are an indirect subsidiary of Crown Castle International and 

Please contact me at 724.416.2239 or via email at michelle.salisbury@crowncastle.com 
if  you have any questions or need any additional information. 

OPC - 
RCA - Thank you. 

SCR 

SGA - 
Michelle Salisburv 

FPSC- COMFfiSSION CLERK 



FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT 

APPLICATION FORM 
for 

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SERVICE 

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

Instructions 

A. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of sale, 
assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of a sale, assignment or 
transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee 
(See Page 8). 

B. Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application. If an item is not 
applicable, please explain. 

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

D. Once completed, submit the original and two (2) copies of this form along with a non- 
refundable application fee of $400.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6770 

E. A filing fee of $400.00 is required for the sale, assignment or transfer of an existing 
certificate to another company (Chapter 25-24.81 5, F.A.C.). 

F. If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of  Competitive Markets and Enforcement 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Ta I la h as see, Florida 3239 9-0 850 
(850) 41 3-6600 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01/06) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab e 
to ~ ~ ~ , s p t s e ~ ~ ~ ~ i i t ~ ~ # t ! f i .  

09703 OCTBg 
- 1 -  
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1. This is an application for (check one): 

[XI Original certificate (new company). 

[? Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original 
certificate of authority rather that apply for a new certificate. 

c] Approval of assignment of existing Certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the existing 
certificate of authority and tariff. 

2. Name of company: FL - CLEC LLC 

3. Name under which applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

FL - CLEC LLC 

4. Official mailing address: 

StreeVPost Office Box: 2000 Corporate Drive 
City: Canonsburg 
State: FL 
Zip: 15317 

5. Florida address: 

StreeVPost Office Box: NA 
City: NA 
State: NA 
Zip: NA 

6. Structure of organization: 

0 Individual Corporation 
0 Foreign Corporation Foreign Partnership 
0 General Partnership Limited Partnership 
Ix] 
M0700002019 - Exhibit 1 

Other, Foreign limited liability company - Florida SOS Registration # 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01/06) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab key 
to navigate between data entry fields. 
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7. If individual, provide: 

Name: NA 
Title: NA 
StreeUPost Office Box: NA 
City: NA 
State: NA 
Zip: NA 
Telephone No.: NA 
Fax No.: NA 
E-Mail Address: NA 
Website Address: NA 

8. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida. The 
Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number is: NA 

9. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida. The Florida 
Secretary of State corporate registration number is: NA 

I O .  If usinq fictitious name (d/b/a), provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida. The Florida Secretary of State 
fictitious name registration number is: NA 

11. If a limited liabilitv partnership, please proof of registration to operate in Florida. 
The Florida Secretary of State registration number is: NA 

12. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the 
partnership agreement. 

Name: NA 
Title: NA 
StreeVPost Office Box: NA 
City: NA 
State: NA 
Zip: NA 
Telephone No.: NA 
Fax No.: NA 
E-Mail Address: NA 
Website Address: NA 

13. If a foreiqn limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited 
partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable. The Florida registration 
number is: NA 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01/06) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab key 
to navigate between data entry fields. 



14. Provide F.E.I. Number(if applicable): 20-8744732 

15. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission in regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Michelle Salisbury 
Title: Paralegal 
Street name & number: 2000 Corporate Drive 
Post office box: NA 
City: Canonsburg 
State: PA 
Zip: 15317 
Telephone No.: 724.416.2239 
Fax No.: 724.41 6.2353 
E-Mail Address: michelle.salisbury@crowncastle.com 
Website Address: www.crowncast1e.com 

(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Name: Michelle Salisbury 
Title: Paralegal 
Street name & number: 2000 Corporate Drive 
Post office box: NA 
City: Canonsburg 
State: PA 
Zip: 15317 
Telephone No.: 724.416.2239 
Fax No.: 724.41 6.2353 
E-Mail Address: michelle.salisbury@crowncastle.com 
Website Address: www.crowncastle.com 

(c) C o m p I a i n t s/l n q u i r i es from c u s to m e rs : 

Name: Crown Castle NOC 
Title: Network Operations Center 
StreeUPost Office Box: 2000 Corporate Drive 
City: Canonsburg 
State: PA 
Zip: 15317 
Telephone No.: 800.788.701 1 
Fax No.: 724.416.2120 
E-Mail Address: Center.NetworkOperations@crowncastle.com 
Website Address: www.crowncastle.com 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01106) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos.  25-24.81 0, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab key 
to navigate,between data entry fields. 

- 4 -  



16. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as a Competitive Local Exchange Telecommunications Company. 

NA 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as a Competitive Local Exchange 
Te leco m m u n ica t i o ns Company . 

NA 

(c) is certificated to operate as a Competitive Local Exchange Telecommunications 
Company. 

NA 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as a Competitive Local Exchange 
Telecommunications Company and the circumstances involved. 

NA 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

NA 

(9 has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local 
exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances 
involved. 

NA 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01/06) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab key 
to navigate between data entry fields. 
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17. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have 
previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent (and not had his or her competency 
restored), or found guilty of any felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may 
result from pending proceedings. If so, provide explanation. 

NA 

(b) granted or denied a competitive local exchange certificate in the State of Florida 
(this includes active and canceled competitive local exchange certificates). If yes, 
provide explanation and list the certificate holder and certificate number. 

NA 

(c) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated or 
registered telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If 
no longer associated with company, give reason whv not. 

NA 

18. Submit the following: See a t t a c h e d  E x h i b i t  2 f o r  (a )  & (b)  and E x h i b i t  3 f o r  ( c )  

(a) Managerial capabilitv: resumes of employees/officers of the company that would 
indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

(b) Technical capabilitv: resumes of employees/officers of the company that would 
indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what company has been 
contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

(c) Financial CaDabilitv: applicant’s audited financial statements for the most recent 
three (3) years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it 
shall so be stated. Unaudited financial statements should be signed by the 
applicant’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the 
financial statements are true and correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet, 
2. income statement, and 
3. statement of retained earnings. 

Note: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a 
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and 
descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions. 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01/06) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab key 
to navigate between data entry fields. 

- 6 -  



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must pay 
a regulatory assessment fee. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a 
minimum annual assessment fee, as defined by the Commission, is required. 

- RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: I acknowledge receipt and understanding 
of the Florida Public Service Commission's rules and orders relating to the provisioning of 
competitive local exchange telecommunications company (CLEC) service in Florida. 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: By my signature below, I ,  the undersigned officer, 
attest to the accuracy of the information contained in this application and attached 
documents and that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and 
financial capability to provide com peti tive local exchange telecom m u n ica ti on s company 
service in the State of Florida. I have read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority 
to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all 
applicable Commission rules and orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever 
knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public 
servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the 
second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083." 

ComDanv Owner or Officer 

Print Name: David J. Tanczos 
Title: Vice President - National Site Development 
Telephone No.: 724.416.2000 
E-Mail Address: david.tanczos@crowncastle.com 

FORM PSCICMP-8 (01106) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, 
and 25-24.815 

Note: To complete this interactive form 
using your computer, use the tab key 
to navigate between data entry fields. 

- 7 -  



EXHIBIT 1 

I certify from the records of this office that FL - CLEC LLC is a liinited 
liability coinpany organized under the laws of Delaware, authorized to 
transact business in the State of Florida, qualified on April 6,2007. 

The docuinent nuinber of this limited liability coinpany is 
M07000002019. 

I further certify that said liinited liability coinpany has paid all fees due 
this office through December 3 1, 2007, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said limited liability coinpany has not filed a 
Certificate of Withdrawal. 



Exhibit 2 
to 

FL - CLEC LLC'S 
Application Form 

for 
Authority to Provide Competitive Local Exchange 

Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida 

RESPONSE TO OUESTION 18 (a) & (b): 

MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL RESOURCES 

Robert Gundermann - Site Development Manager, National Site Development 

Robert "Bob" Gundermann currently serves as the Site Development Manager for the western half of 
the United States. He has over 12 years of industry experience spanning all areas of site development 
work; Site Acquisition, Zoning, Construction Management, Project Management and Program 
Management. This work has been conducted all over the country and the globe. He has deployed 
multiple DAS networks for Crown over the western half of the United States. He deployed his first 
DAS network at UC Berkeley Lawrence Hall of Science in 2002. Bob joined Crown in June of 2004 
spending his time working with the DAS deployment team. He received a B.A in 1993 from 
California State University, Chico. 

Pedro Miraz - Director - DAS Development & Implementation for the Western U.S. 

Pedro has over 18 years of wireless experience. Pedro spent the past 15 years with Verizon Wireless 
where he held several positions including Equipment Engineer, Manager of Network Implementation, 
and Director of Network Engineering, and he has successfully led both small and large teams in the 
attainment of aggressive deployment goals in the challenging Southem California market. In addition, 
under his leadership, his teams have successfully deployed hundreds of fiber-fed DAS nodes to 
provide coverage and capacity relief in Southem California. 

Rick Soto - RF' Desim and Performance 

Rick has over 18 years of wireless engineering experience. Rick started at Airtouch working for Dr. 
William CY. Lee in designing and deploying the first microcells in the United States. Rick has also 
worked in many locations with Alltel including responsibilities in the advanced technology group and 
later served as RF Design and System Performance Manager for the Southeast region. Rick oversaw 9 
CDMA overlays and PCS deployments in 9 markets within the Southeast region. 



Exhibit 2 
to 

FL - CLEC LLC’S 
Application Form 

MANAGEFUAL AND TECHNICAL RESOURCES 

Page 2 

Harry Stephey - Project Manager 

Harry has over 30 years experience in the telecommunications industry, primarily in development of 
computer-based systems for telephone billing, telephone traffic analysis and automatic meter reading. 
He also has 10 years experience in the wireless industry with DCX Systems (Cellemetry), Metricom 
and Crown Castle. Harry has BSEE and MSEE degrees from Drexel University. Currently, Harry is 
responsible for building Crown’s DAS networks in the eastern half of the US, including New York’s 
Hutchinson River Parkway and Hilton Head Plantation. 

Bill Topping - Operations 

Bill brings over 40 years of experience in telecommunications to Crown. His past positions include 
numerous positions with GTE and Aerial (T-Mobile) and covers both the landline and wireless side of 
the business. While at GTE, he held many functions included Service Center (NOC), District 
Manager of Operations, Engineering and Construction, Inside Plant, Outside Plant, and Customer 
Service. At Aerial, Bill was the NOC/Operations manager in Tampa, FL. Bill joined SOLUTIONS in 
200 1, where he is responsible for the Operations and NOC functions. SOLUTIONS Operations 
consists of Network Operations, Engineers, technicians and NOC personnel. Bill is the Network 
Operations Manager for the entire United States. Bill has engineered, constructed, and managed the 
operation of several DAS systems over all of the United States during his 5 years at Crown Castle. 

KanP Yueh - Chief Engineer 

Dr. Kang Yueh brings over 16 years of wireless system design and RF system performance experience 
to Crown Castle Solutions. He joined SOLUTIONS in 2001 to lead the company’s DAS product 
evaluation and development efforts, and is now the Chief Engineer of Distributed Antenna Systems. 
He is responsible for the overall DAS network design and engineering, which includes evaluating 
vendors’ equipment for equipment specifications and system configurations, equipment sparing 
strategy and recommendations, fiber optics network design layout and specifications, interfacing with 
DAS equipment providers for product enhancements, new product development, and identifying 
impacts to DAS deployment and operations. Prior to joining SOLUTIONS, he was a Technical 
Manager at Lucent Technologies, responsible for wireless system software development, customer 
current engineering support, and RF system performance for both analog and digital cellular systems, 
including AMPS, GSM, TDMA and CDMA technologies. He was awarded the Bell Labs 
Distinguished Member of Technical Staff in 1985. Dr. Kang Yueh received his B.S. degree in Physics 
from National Taiwan University, M.S. degree in Physics from University of Pennsylvania, M.S. and 
Ph.D. degrees in Computer Science from University of Pennsylvania. 



Exhibit 3 
to 

FL - CLEC LLC’S 
Application Form 

for 
Authority to Provide Competitive Local Exchange 

Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida 

RESPONSE TO QUESTION 18 (c): 

FL - CLEC LLC is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Crown Castle International. The 
company was just recently formed; therefore no financial statements are available. However, in 
the future, FL - CLEC LLC will be able to provide the Commission with unaudited financial 
statements. In lieu of financial information for FL - CLEC LLC, the most recent Crown Castle 
International 10-Q is attached. 



CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP 

FORM IO-Q 
(Quarterly Report) 

Filed 8/8/2007 For Period Ending 6/30/2007 

Address 

Telephone 
CIK 
industry 
Sector 
Fiscal Year 

1220 AUGUSTA DRIVE SUITE 500 

HOUSTON, Texas 77057 
71 3-570-3000 
0001051470 
Communications Services 
Services 
1 2/31 



Index to Financial Statements 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECUFUTIES EXCHANGE 
ACT OF 1934 
For the quarterly period ended June 30,2007 

OR 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE 
ACT OF 1934 
For the transition period to 

Commission File Number 001-16441 

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 
(State o r  other jurisdiction of  

incorporation or organization) 

1220 Augusta Drive 
Suite 500 

Houston, Texas 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

(713) 570-3000 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

76-0470458 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Identification No.) 

77057-2261 
(Zip Code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and 
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes IX No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer (as defined in 
Rule 12b-2 of the Act). 

Large Accelerated Filer IX Accelerated Filer 0 Non-Accelerated Filer 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Act). Yes 0 No W 

Number of shares of common stock outstanding at July 3 1, 2007: 284,646,524 



Index to Financial Statements 

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
INDEX 

PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

Consolidated Balancc Sheet at Deccmbcr 31, 2006 and June 30, 2007 

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 
and 2007 3 

Consolidated Statcmcnl of Cash Plows for the six months ended June 30,2006 and 2007 4 

2 

Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

5 

28 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 47 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 49 

PART 11-OTHER INFORIMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

50 

50 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 50 

Item 4. 

Item 6. Exhibits 

Signatures 

Submission of matters to a vote ofsccurity holders 50 

51 

52 

Cautionary Language Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that are based on our management’s expectations as of the 
filing date of this report with the SEC. Statements that are not historical facts are identified as forward-looking statements. Such statements 
include plans, projections and estimates contained in “Part I-Item 2. Management’s Discussion anddnaijsis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations” and “Part I-Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” herein. Words such as “estimate,” 
“anticipate,” “project,” “plan,” “intend,” “believe,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Examples of 
forward-looking statements include statements we make regarding our business strategies, business fundamentals, demand for our towers, 
growth prospects of the wireless industry, our future operating prospects including synergies from the merger (“Global Signal Mcrger”) of 
Global Signal Inc. (“Global Signal”) with and into a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours and our future purchases of our common or preferred 
stock. 

Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including prevailing market conditions, the 
risk factors described under ‘‘ Part 11-Other Information, Item 1A. Risk Factors ” herein and in “Item I A .  Risk Factors” of our Annual Report 
on Form 10-K/A Amendment No. 1 (“2006 Form 10-K”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 and other factors. Should one or more of 
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those 
expected. 

1 



Index to Financial Statements 

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

(In thousands of dollars, except share amounts) 

December 31, June 30, 
2006 2007 

(Unaudited) 
ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Receivables: 

Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,410 and $7,596, respectively 
Other 

Deferred site rental receivable 
Prepaid leases 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total current assets 
Restricted cash 
Deferred site rental receivable 
Available-for-sale securities, net of unrealized gains (losses) of S 19,247 and $(2 1,600), respectively 
Property and equipment, net 
Goodwill 
Other intangible assets, net: 

Site rental contracts 
Other 

respectively 
Deferred financing costs and other assets, net of accumulated amortization of $10,896 and $18,469, 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued estimated property taxes 
Deferred revenues 
Other accrued liabilities 
Long-term debt, current maturities 

Total current liabilities 
Long-term debt 
Deferred ground lease payable 
Deferred tax liability 
Other liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (note 12) 
Minority interests 
Redeemable preferred stock, $0.1 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding: 

December 3 1, 2006 and June 30, 2007-6,361,000; stated net of unamortized issue costs; mandatory 
redemption and aggregate liquidation value of $3 18,050 

Total liabilities 

Stockholders’ equity: 
Common stock, $.Ol par value; 690,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding: 

Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
Accumulated deficit 

Total stockholders’ equity 

December 3 1,2006-202,080,546 and June 30,2007-284,635,697 

$ 592,716 $ 92,432 
11  5,503 146,605 

23,024 
7,750 

13,429 
36,597 
1 1,008 

800,027 
5,000 

98,527 
154,955 

3,246,446 
39 1,448 

20,132 
6,860 

17,936 
69,244 
20,563 

374,372 
5,000 

113,801 
114,108 

5,123,413 
1,956,522 

225,295 2,622,438 
- 12 1,44 1 

84,470 189,928 
$ 5,006,168 $10,621,023 

$ 18,545 
13,100 
10,768 

102,70 1 
55,68 1 
- 

200,795 
3,5 13,890 

135,661 

57,6 18 
3,907,964 

- 

$ 23,522 
25,408 
14,131 

120,910 
47,938 

6,500 
238,409 

5,990,684 
155,598 
267,279 
142,937 

6,794,907 

29,052 324 

312,871 3 13,335 

2,02 1 2,846 
2,873,858 5,661,100 

65,000 114,461 
(2,184,598) (2,265,950) 

756,28 1 3,5 12,457 
$ 5,006,168 $10,621,023 

See condensed notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2 



Index to Financial Statements 

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

(Unaudited) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per  share amounts) 

Three Months Ended 

2006 2007 2006 2007 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 
--- 
$169,160 $322,336 3331,057 $ 622,128 

Net revenues : 
Site rental 
Network services and other 24,616 20,534 45,384 36,45 1 

193,776 342,870 376,441 658,579 --- 
Operating expenses: 

Costs ofoperations: (a)  

Site rental 
Network services and other 

General and administrative 
Corporate development 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs 
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 

50,927 
15,880 
25,825 

2,686 
1,522 
- 

112,166 
14,679 
34,216 

2,111 
3,391 
5,069 

133,324 
304 956 

37,914 
L 

100,617 
29,666 
49,988 

4,364 
1,857 

141,465 
- 

21 8,761 
26,452 
68,033 

3,296 
4,743 

13,917 
272,017 
607,219 

51,360 

6,205 
- 

69,374 
166,2 14 
27,562 

327,957 
48,484 Operating income (loss) 

Losses on purchases and redemptions of debt 
Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests 
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 
Dividends on preferred stock 
Net income (loss) after deduction of dividends on preferred stock 
Net income (loss) 
Other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes of 

Derivative instruments: 
$-0-, $7,932, $-0- and $7,560, respectively (note 10) 

Net change in fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, net of taxes of $-0-, 

Amounts reclassified into results of operations, net of taxes of $-0-, $264, $0- 
$33,155, $-0- and $31,451, respectively (note 10) 

and $529, respectively 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 

Comprehensive income (loss) 
Per common share-basic and diluted: 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Net income (loss) 

Weighted average common shares outstanding-basic and diluted (in thousands) 

(740) 
(2,199) 

(37,455) 
(1 2,832) 

(507) 
4 

(740) 
(3,535) 

(69,7 15) 
(2 5,5 06) 

(1,123) 
915 

(25,7 1 4) 

- 
2,906 

(8 8,790) 
(47,970) 

(1 70,805) 
(1 13,240) 

15,620 

(32,740) 
(390) 

37,782 

(75,63 1) 
(173) 

(1 3,33 5) 
5,657 

(20,057) 
(10,403) 
(30,460) 
(20,057) 

- 
(13,335) 

- 
(32,740) (75,63 1) 

(5,202) 
$(18,537) 
$ (13,335) 

(5,202) 
$ (37,942) 
$ (32,740) 

(1 0,403) 
$ (86,034) 
$ (75,631) 

(14,732) (3 3,2 8 7) 

23,947 61,572 43,301 69,435 

(126) 
1,415 

$ 24,533 

(4 13) 
4,837 

$ 15,036 

S (0.09) 

49 1 
8,495 

S 23,086 

98 1 
12,332 

S (26,170) 

$ (0.13) 
- 

S (0.17) $ (0.31) 
0.03 

$ (0.14) 
2 13,574 

- 
$ (0.09) 

212,675 
$ (0.13) 

282,025 
$ (0.31) 

277,741 

(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately. 

See condensed notes to consolidated financial statements 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited) 

(In thousands of dollars) 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

2006 2007 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 
Amortization of deferred financing costs and discounts 
Stock-based compensation charges 
Minority interests 
Equity in losses and write-downs of unconsolidated affiliates 
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) 
(Income) loss from discontinued operations 
Other adjustments 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions: 

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred rental revenucs, deferred ground lease payable and other 

Decrease (increase) in receivables 
Decrease (increase) in inventories, prepaid expenses, deferred site rental receivable, prepaid 

liabilities 

term easements and other assets 
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Proceeds from investments and disposition of property and equipment 
Payments for acquisitions (net of cash acquired) 
Payments for capital expenditures 
Investments and loans 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock 
Payments under revolving credit agreements 
Purchases of capital stock 
Incurrence of financing costs 
Net decrease (increase) in restricted cash 
Interest rate swap receipts (payments) 
Dividends on preferred stock 
Capital distribution to minority interest holders of CCAL 

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 
Cash flows from discontinued operations: 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 
Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued operations 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

S (20,057) 

141,465 
4,083 
8,894 

7,250 
19 

2,786 

1,500 
4,436 

(915) 

(5,657) 

(2933 1) 
(5,913) 

( 1 7,188) 
118,372 

1,079 

(49,274) 

(49,195) 

- 

(1,000) 

1,000,000 
37,909 

(295,000) 
(340,104) 

(4,272) 
(1 2,075) 

5,915 
(9,938) 
- 

382,435 
(82) 

5,657 
5,657 

457,187 
65,408 

$ 522,595 

$ (75,631) 

272,O 17 
9,260 

12,39 1 
173 
- 

(39,621) 

6,253 

9,272 

- 

(6,094) 

( 5  3,350) 
12,879 

(28,8 11) 
11 8,738 

2,782 
(489,477) 
(1 24,925) 

(6 12,120) 

650,000 
13,334 

(60 1,3 52) 
(8,779) 

(14,138) 

(9,940) 
(37,196) 

(8,071) 
1,169 

(500) 

- 

- 

- 
- 

(500,284) 
592,7 16 

$ 92,432 

See condensed notes to consolidated financial statements 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL C O W .  AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited 

1. General 
The information contained in the following notes to the consolidated financial statements is condensed from that which would appear in 

the annual consolidated financial statements; accordingly, the consolidated financial statements included herein should be reviewed in 
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 3 1, 2006, and related notes thereto, included in the 
2006 Form 10-K filed by Crown Castle International Corp. (“CCIC”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). All references to 
the “Company” include CCIC and its subsidiary companies unless otherwise indicated or the context indicates otherwise. 

The Company owns, operates and manages towers and other communications structures (collectively, “towers”). The Company’s primary 
business is the leasing of antenna space to wireless communication companies under long-term contracts. The Company also provides 
complementary services to its customers including initial antenna installation and subsequent augmentation, site acquisition, site development 
and construction, network design and site selection, site management and other services. The Company’s assets are primarily located 
throughout the US. and Australia and to a lesser extent in Puerto Rico, Canada and the U.K. 

Basis of Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements included herein are unaudited; however, they include all adjustments (consisting only of normal 

recurring adjustments) which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly the consolidated financial position of the Company 
at June 30, 2007, the consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007 and the consolidated cash 
flows for the six months endcd June 30, 2006 and 2007. Accounting measurements at interim dates inherently involve greater reliance on 
estimates than at year end. The results of operations for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected 
for the entire year. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the 
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

The Company completed the Global Signal Merger on January 12, 2007 (see note 3). The results of operations from the former 
subsidiaries of Global Signal (“Global Signal Entities”) were included in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income 
(loss) from January 12,2007. 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial statements for prior periods in order to conform to the presentation for the three 
and six months ended June 30,2007 including a change in reportable segments. See note 14. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
With the exception of those policies disclosed below, the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the Company’s 

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in the Company’s 2006 Form 10-K. 

Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets are included in “other intangible assets, net” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and consist of the estimated 

fair value of the following items recorded in conjunction with acquisitions: (i) in-place customer site rental contracts, (ii) below-market leases 
for land under its towers, (iii) term easement rights for land under its towers, and (iv) trademarks. Deferred credits related to above-market 
leases for land under its towers recorded in conjunction with acquisitions are recorded at the estimated fair value and are included in “other 
liabilities” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL C O W .  AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

The carrying value of other intangible assets with finite useful lives will be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. If the sum of the estimated future cash flows 
(undiscounted) expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of an asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment 
loss is recognized. Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset. 

Income Taxes 
The company recognizes a tax position if i t  is more likely than not it will be sustained upon examination. The tax position is measured at 

the largest amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. See notes 2 and 10 for a discussion of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), Accounting for  Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an 
Interpretation of FASB S/atctnenl No. I09. 

2. New Accounting Pronouncements 

recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position if it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit based on 
the technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of the beginning of the Company’s 2007 fiscal year with the 
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening accumulated deficit. The Company adopted FIN 
48 on January 1,2007. The adoption of FIN 48 resulted in a decrease in accumulated deficit and a decrease in contingent tax liabilities through 
a cumulative effect adjustment of $4.7 million. The adjustment to accumulated deficit is summarized in the following table. See note 10. 

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 requires that the Company 

Balance as of January 1,2007 
Adjustment for adoption of FIN 48 
Balance as of  January 1,2007, as currently reported 

Accumulated 
Deficit 

(In thousands of dollars) 
$ (2,184,598) 

4,682 
$ (2,179,916) 

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (“SFAS 157”), Fair Value Measurements , 
which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures 
about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company as of January 1, 2008. The requirements of SFAS 157 will be applied 
prospectively except for certain derivative instruments that would be adjusted through the opening balance of retained eamings in the period of 
adoption. The Company believes the adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

In February 2007, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 159 (“SFAS 159”), The Fair Value Option for  
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-Including an Amendment ofFASB Statement No. I15 . SFAS 159 permits an entity to elect to 
measure eligible items at fair value (“fair value option”) including many financial instruments. The provisions of SFAS 159 are effective for 
the Company as of January 1, 2008. If the fair value option is elected, the Company will report unrealized gains and losses on items for which 
the fair value option has been elected in eamings at each subsequent reporting date. Upfront costs and fees related to items for which the fair 
value option is elected shall be recognized in eamings as incurred and not deferred. The fair value option may be applied for a single eligible 
item without electing it for other identical items, with certain exceptions, and must be applied to the entire eligible item and not to a portion of 
the eligible item. The Company is currently evaluating the irrevocable election of the fair value option pursuant to SFAS 159. 

In May 2007, the FASB issued staff position No. FIN 48-1 (“FSP FIN 48-l”), Definition ofsettlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48 
which amended FIN 48 to provide guidance about how an enterprise should determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the 
purpose of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES T O  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

Under FSP FIN 48-1, a tax position could be effectively settled on completion of an examination by a taxing authority. The Company adopted 
FSP FIN 48-1 in conjunction with our adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48-1 did not have a material impact on the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The impact for the year ended December 3 1,2007 of applying the provisions of FSP FIN 48- 1 
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements will be affected by the completion of any examinations during the period. See note 10. 

3. Acquisition 
Acquisition of Global Signal 
On January 12, 2007, the Global Signal Merger was completed for a purchase price of approximately $4.0 billion, exclusive of debt of 

approximately $1.8 billion that remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities the Company acquired. The Company entered 
into the Global Signal Merger primarily because of the growth opportunities it anticipates the tower portfolio will provide, including through 
leveraging the Company’s management team and customer service across an enhanced national footprint. Secondarily, the Company believes 
there will be synergistic opportunities provided by the Global Signal Merger. The results of operations from the Global Signal Entities acquired 
have been included in the consolidated statements of operations from January 12, 2007. 

In connection with the Global Signal Merger, each outstanding share of common stock of Global Signal was converted into the right to 
receive, at the election of the holder thereof, either 1.61 shares of the Company’s common stock or $55.95 in cash. In addition, in connection 
with the Global Signal Merger, the obligation pursuant to each warrant (“GSI Warrants”) entitling the holder thereof to purchase shares of 
Global Signal common stock was assumed by the Company with appropriate adjustments made to the number of shares and exercise price per 
share. Accordingly, each such warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase 3.22 shares of the Company’s common stock. As a result of the 
Global Signal Merger, the Company issued approximately 98.1 million shares of common stock to the shareholders of Global Signal and paid 
the maximum S550.0 million in cash (“Cash Consideration”) and reserved for issuance approximately 0.6 million shares of common stock 
issuable pursuant to warrants described above (see note 11). The Company primarily financed the Cash Consideration with cash obtained from 
the issuance of the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes in November 2006. At the closing of the Global Signal Merger, Global Signal’s subsidiaries 
had debt outstanding of approximately $1.8 billion. The debt of the Global Signal Entities has a structure similar to the 2005 Tower Revenue 
Notes and the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes (see note 6). 

The purchase price of approximately S4.0 billion includes the fair value of common stock issued, the Cash Consideration, the fair value 
of the GSI Warrants and restricted common stock assumed and estimated transaction costs. The components of the preliminary purchase price 
are as follows: 

Issuance of common stock to stockholders of Global Signal (98.1 million shares at $34.20) 
Cash consideration 
Fair value of  warrants assumed 
Fair value of restricted stock assumed 
Estimated transaction costs 

Total preliminary purchase price 

[In thousands of dollars) 
$ 3,353,215 

550,013 
18,392 
2,240 

3 1,500 
s 3,955,420 

The fair value of the common stock and restricted common stock issued was detemiined using a value of $34.20 per share which 
represents the average closing price of the Company’s common stock for the five-day period comprised of the two days prior to, the day of and 
the two days subsequent to the date of the merger agreement (October 4,2006). The fair value of the warrants was determined using a Black- 
Scholes-Merton valuation model. 

Through the Global Signal Merger, the Company acquired 10,749 towers including 6,553 towers (“Sprint Towers”) leased or operated 
through May 2037, which are accounted for as capital leases, under master leases and subleases (“Sprint Master Leases”) with Sprint 
Corporation (a predecessor of Sprint Nextel) and certain Sprint 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

Corporation subsidiaries entered into in May 2005. Global Signal prepaid the rent owed under the Sprint Master Leases in May 2005. During 
the period commencing one year prior to the expiration of the Sprint Master Leases and ending 120 days prior to expiration, the Company, after 
the Global Signal Merger, has the option to purchase all (but not less than all) of the Sprint Towers then leased for approximately $2.3 billion. 
After the Global Signal Merger, the Company is entitled to all revenues from the Sprint Towers during the term of the Sprint Master Leases. In 
addition, under the Sprint Master Leases, certain Sprint Corporation subsidiaries have agreed to sublease space on substantially all of the Sprint 
Towers for an initial period through May 2015. At the closing of the Global Signal Merger, the Sprint Master Leases remained effective as an 
asset and commitment of the Global Signal Entities the Company acquired. 

The Company is in the process of obtaining the third-party valuation of certain of the assets and liabilities of the Global Signal Entities 
including property and equipment and intangibles. Given the size and timing of the Global Signal Merger, the amount of certain assets and 
liabilities presented herein arc based 011 preliminary valuations and are subject to adjustmcnt as additional information is obtained and thc third- 
party valuation is finalized. The primary areas of the purchase price allocation that are not finalized relate to fair values of property and 
equipment, intangibles, restructuring and merger related liabilities, other liabilities, goodwill and the related tax impact of adjustments related 
to such items on the purchase price allocation. The Company expects to finalize the purchase price allocation in the third quarter of 2007. 

The preliminary allocation of the total preliminary purchase price for the Global Signal Merger is as follows, subject to future adjustment 
of the purchase price allocation. 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Other current assets 
Property and equipment 
Goodwill (n) 

Other intangible assets 
Other assets 

Total assets 
Liabilities: 

Deferred rental revenues and other accrued liabilities 
Deferred tax liability 
Long-term debt 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Net assets acquired 

(In thousands of dollars) 

$ 96,686 
16,964 
40,76 1 

1,954,638 
1,854,5 19 
2,579,210 

3,043 
6,545,821 

95,644 
572,687 

1,83 1,644 
90,426 

2,590,40 1 
$ 3,955,420 

(a) On a consolidated basis, goodwill was reduced by approximately $289.0 million related to the reversal of the Company’s federal 
valuation allowance as a result of recording deferred tax liabilities in purchase accounting for the Global Signal Merger. See note 10. 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

Unaudited Pro F o m a  Operating Resiilts 
The following table presents the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated results of operations of the Company as if the Global 

Signal Merger were completed as of January 1 for the periods presented below. The unaudited pro forma amounts are presented for illustrative 
purposes only, are not necessarily indicative of future consolidated results of operations and do not reflect the realization of potential cost 
savings and any related integration costs. 

Net revenues 
Costs of operations 

Six Months Ended June 30, 
2006 2007 
(In thousands of dollars, 

except per share amounts) 
$ 625,051 $ 674,427 

235,814 25 1,861 
Operating income (loss) (a) 31,141 46,523 
Income (loss) from continuing operations (a) (82,134) (80,506) 
Basic and diluted income (loss) from continuing operations per common share (a) (0.30) (0.33) 

(a) The six months ended June 30, 2007 is inclusive of non-recurring integration charges related to the Global Signal Merger of $14.0 
million. 

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated results of operations include the pro forma impact of: (i) the adjustment of amortization 
of acquired intangible assets and depreciation of fixed assets based on the preliminary purchase price allocation, (ii) the adjustment of site 
rental revenues and costs of operations for the straight-line revenue and straight-line ground lease expense adjustments, respectively, (iii) the 
adjustment of interest expense for the fair value of debt adjustment, (iv) the adjustment of general and administrative expenses for the fair value 
of restricted stock assumed adjustment, and (v) the adjustment of income taxes for the preceding pro forma adjustments and to reflect the 
change in the tax status of the Global Signal entities, utilizing the Company’s statutory rate of 35%. The assumptions used to calculate the pro 
forma adjustments are consistent with those applied in the pro forma condensed consolidated results of operations for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2006 set forth on the Form 8-K dated March 30, 2007. 

The pro forma consolidated basic and diluted income (loss) per common share from continuing operations amounts are based on the 
consolidated basic and diluted shares of the Company and former Global Signal. The historical basic and diluted weighted average shares of the 
former Global Signal were converted for the actual number of shares issued upon the closing of the Global Signal Merger. The per share 
calculations do not include potential common shares issuable pursuant to options and warrants as their effect is anti-dilutive. 

Mountain Union 
On January 2,2007, the Company purchased the remaining approximately 2% minority interest in Mountain Union for $4.8 million. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

4. Property and Equipment 
The major classes of property and equipment are as follows: 

Land 
Buildings 
Telecommunications towers 
Transportation and othcr cquipmcnt 
Office fumiture and equipment 
Construction in process 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

40 years 
1-20 years 
3-5 years 

2- 10 years 

December 31, June 30, 

2006 2007 
(In thousands of dollars) 

$ 145,639 $ 340,743 
17,656 30,341 

4,77 1,067 6,638,605 
19,850 23,85 1 
93,637 99,600 
83,372 95,066 

5,131,221 7,228,206 
(1,884,775) (2,104,793) 

$ 3,246,446 $ 5,123,413 

Depreciation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 was $97.5 million and S205.2 million, respectively. Accumulated 
depreciation on tclecommunications towers was $1.8 billion and $2.0 billion at December 31, 2006 and June 30, 2007, respectively. As a result 
of the Global Signal Merger, the Company recorded an increase to property and equipment of $2.0 billion, $1.8 billion of which was related to 
telecommunication towers. See note 3. 

5. Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Deferred Credits 
Goodwill 
As of December 3 1, 2006 and June 30, 2007, the Company had consolidated goodwill of $391.4 million and $2.0 billion, respectively; all 

of which was at CCUSA. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Company recorded goodwill of S 1.9 billion as a result of the 
preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the Global Signal Merger (see note 3). In addition during the six months ended June 30, 2007, 
goodwill on a consolidated basis was reduced by approximately $289.0 million as a result of the reversal of the Company’s federal valuation 
allowance in conjunction with recording deferred tax liabilities in purchase accounting for the Global Signal Merger (see note 10). 

Intangible Assets 
See note 1 for a further discussion of intangible assets. As of June 30, 2007, $2.7 billion and S3.4 million of the intangible assets are 

recorded at CCUSA and CCAL, respectively. A summary of intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows: 

Site rental contracts 
Below-market leases 
Other 

As of June 30,2007 
Cross Accumulated 

Net Book Carrying 
Amount Amortization Value 

(In thousands of dollars) 
$2,725,817 $ (103,379) $2,622,438 

8 1,402 (2,205) 79,197 
43,249 (1,005) 42,244 

$2,850,468 $ (106,589) $2,743,879 
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During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Company recorded additions to intangible assets of (1)  $2.6 billion as a result of the 
preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the Global Signal Merger (see note 3), (2) $3.4 million related to the purchase of the remaining 
minority interest in Mountain Union (see note 3) and (3) $3.4 million related to a tower purchase in Australia. The components of the additions 
to intangible assets during the six months ended June 30,2007 are as follows: 

For the Six Months Ended 
June 30,2007 

Weighted 
Average 

Amortization 

Amount Period 
(In thousands of dollars) (In years) 

Site rental contracts 
Below-market leases 
Other 

$ 2,46 1,345 20.0 
81,401 16.9 
43,227 29.4 

$ 2,585,973 

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Company recorded amortization expense relating to intangible assets as an increase to 
“depreciation, amortization and accretion” of $65.6 million and an increase to “site rental costs of operations” of $2.2 million. The estimated 
annual amortization expense related to intangible assets for the years ended December 31,2007 to 2012 are as follows: 

Estimated Annual 

Year ending December 3 1,2007 
Years ending December 3 1,2008 to 201 1 
Year ending December 3 I ,  20 12 

Amortization 
(In thousands of dollars) 
$ 142,228 

147,765 
144,400 

Deferred Credits 
See note 1 for a further discussion of deferred credits related to above-market leases for land under the Company’s towers recorded in 

connection with acquisitions. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Company recorded $80.6 million related to above-market leases 
as a result of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the Global Signal Merger (see note 3). The above-market leases recorded 
during the six months ended June 30, 2007 have a weighted average amortization period of 15.3 years. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, 
the Company recorded $2.4 million as a decrease to “site rental costs of operations”. A summary of the deferred credit related to above-market 
leases is as follows: 

As of June 30,2007 

Carrying Net Book 
Cross Accumulated 

Above-market leases 

11 

Amount Amortization Value 
(In thousands of dollars) 

$80,542 $ (2,365) $78,177 
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6.  

following: 

Long-term Debt and Interest Rate Swaps 
Long-term debt, including the unamortized portion of the fair value adjustments recorded in purchase accounting, consists of the 

2006 Mortgage Loan due 201 1 
2004 Mortgage Loan due 2009 
2007 Credit Facility--Term Loan A and B due 20 I4 
Senior Secured 2006 Tower Revenue Notes due 2036 
Senior Secured 2005 Tower Revenue Notes due 2035 
4% Convertible Senior Notes due 2010 
7.5% Senior Notes due 2013 

Less: current maturities 

December 31, 
June 30, 

2006 2007 
(In thousands of dollars) 

$ -  $1,547,231 
- 286,094 
- 650,000 

1,550,000 1,550,000 
1,900,000 1,900,000 

63,839 63,802 

3,513,890 5,997,184 
- 6,500 

S3,5 13,890 $5,990,684 

51 51 

The Company’s debt obligations contain certain financial covenants with which CCIC or its subsidiaries must maintain compliance, or 
restrictions are imposed. As of and for the six months ended June 30, 2007, CCIC and its subsidiaries had no financial covenant violations. 
Various of the Company’s debt obligations also place other restrictions on CCIC or its subsidiaries including the ability to incur debt and liens, 
purchase Company securities, make capital expenditures, dispose of assets, undertake transactions with affiliates, make other investments and 
pay dividends. 

2006 Mortgage Loan 
On February 28, 2006, three of Global Signal’s wholly-owned special purpose entities (“2006 Borrowers”) borrowed a total of $1.55 

billion under a mortgage loan (“2006 Mortgage Loan”). At the closing of the Global Signal Merger, the 2006 Mortgage Loan remained 
outstanding as an obligation of certain of the Global Signal Entities the Company acquired. 

The principal amount of the 2006 Mortgage Loan is divided into seven tranches, each having a different level of seniority. Interest 
accrues on the 2006 Mortgage Loan at a weighted average fixed interest rate of approximately 5.69%. The Company recorded a fair value 
adjustment of $3.1 million to decrease the value of the 2006 Mortgage Loan to fair value as part of the preliminary allocation of the purchase 
price of the Global Signal Merger. As of June 30, 2007, the 2006 Mortgage Loan is net of the unamortized purchase price adjustment of S2.8 
million. The effective interest rate after giving effect to the fair value purchase price adjustment is approximately 5.74%. The 2006 Mortgage 
Loan requires monthly payments of interest until its repayment date in February 201 1. The 2006 Mortgage Loan is secured by, among other 
things, mortgage liens on the 2006 Borrowers’ interests (fee, leasehold or easement) in over 80% of the 2006 Borrowers’ towers. 

On a monthly basis, the excess cash flows from the 2006 Borrowers, after the payment of principal, interest, reserves and expenses, are 
distributed to the Company. The Company may not prepay the 2006 Mortgage Loan in whole or in part at any time prior to February 28, 2008, 
the second anniversary of the closing date, except in limited circumstances (such as the occurrence of certain casualty and condemnation events 
relating to the towers securing the 2006 Mortgage Loan). Thereafter, prepayment is permitted provided it is accompanied by any applicable 
prepayment consideration. If the prepayment occurs within three months of the February 201 1 monthly payment date, no prepayment 
consideration is due. 

12 



Index to Financial Statements 

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

2004 Mortgage Loan 
On December 7, 2004, Global Signal’s wholly-owned special purpose entity and five of its direct and indirect subsidiaries (“2004 

Borrowers”) issued a $293.8 million mortgage loan (“2004 Mortgage Loan”). At the closing of the Global Signal Merger, the 2004 Mortgage 
Loan remained outstanding as an obligation of certain of the Global Signal Entities the Company acquired. 

The principal amount of the 2004 Mortgage Loan is divided into seven tranches, each having a different level of seniority. Interest 
accrues on each tranche at a fixed rate per annum. The weighted average fixed interest rate on the various tranches is approximately 4.74%. 
The Company recorded a fair value adjustment of $9.1 million to decrease the value of the 2004 Mortgage Loan to fair value as part of the 
preliminary allocation of the purchase price of the Global Signal Merger. As of June 30,2007, the 2004 Mortgage Loan is net of the 
unamortized purchase price adjustment of $7.7 million. The effective interest rate after giving effect to the fair value purchase price adjustment 
is approximately 5.78%. The 2004 Mortgage Loan requires monthly payments of interest until its maturity in December 2009 when the unpaid 
principal balance will be due. The 2004 Mortgage Loan is secured by, among other things, mortgage liens on the 2004 Borrowers’ interests 
(fee, leasehold or easement) in substantially all of the 2004 Borrowers’ towers. 

On a monthly basis, the excess cash flows from the 2004 Borrowers, after the payment of principal, interest, reserves and expenses, are 
distributed to the Company. The Company may prepay the 2004 Mortgage Loan, in whole or in part at any time in the future, provided it is 
accompanied by any applicable prepayment consideration. If the prepayment occurs within three months of the December 2009 monthly 
payment date, no prepayment consideration is due. 

2007 Credit Facility 
On January 9, 2007, CCOC entered into a credit agreement (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, “2007 Credit Agreement”) 

with a syndicate of lenders pursuant to which such lenders agreed to provide CCOC with a $250.0 million senior secured revolving credit 
facility maturing January 8,2008 (“2007 Revolver”). The 2007 Revolver is guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries. On 
January 26, 2007, CCOC entered into a term loan joinder (as amended, “2007 Joinder A”) pursuant to which the lenders agreed to provide 
CCOC with a $600.0 million senior secured term loan (“2007 Term Loan A”) under the 2007 Credit Agreement. 

On March 6, 2007, CCOC entered into an amendment to the 2007 Credit Agreement, with the subsidiary guarantors named therein 
pursuant to which the lenders agreed to amend certain terms of the Credit Agreement, which included (i) a reduction in the interest rate margins 
applicable to borrowings under the 2007 Revolver and (ii) upon termination of the 2007 Revolver, elimination of the covenants that require 
compliance with certain financial ratios. On March 6, 2007, CCOC entered into an amendment to the 2007 Joinder A pursuant to which the 
lenders agreed to amend certain terms applicable to the 2007 Term Loan A including (i) a reduction in the interest rate margins applicable to 
the Existing Term Loan and (ii) an extension of the maturity date of the 2007 Term Loan A from January 25, 2014, to March 6, 2014. On 
March 6, 2007, CCOC also entered into a second term loan joinder (“2007 Joinder B”) pursuant to which the lenders agreed to provide CCOC 
with a $50.0 million senior secured term loan (“2007 Term Loan B” and, together with the 2007 Term Loan A, “2007 Term Loans”) under the 
2007 Credit Agreement. 

The 2007 Credit Agreement now provides for aggregate commitments of $900.0 million consisting of (i) the $250.0 million 2007 
Revolver which will mature on January 8,2008 and (ii) the $650.0 million 2007 Term Loans. The 2007 Term Loans will mature in consecutive 
quarterly installments of an aggregate $1.6 million and the entire remaining outstanding amount will mature on March 6, 2014. 

The 2007 Revolver and 2007 Term Loans are secured by a pledge of certain equity interests of certain subsidiaries of CCOC, as well as a 
security interest in CCOC’s deposit accounts and securities accounts. The 2007 Revolver and 2007 Term Loans are guaranteed by CCIC and 
certain of its subsidiaries. 
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The proceeds of the 2007 Revolver may be used for general corporate purposes which may include the financing of capital expenditures, 
acquisitions and purchases of the Company’s securities. The proceeds from the Term Loan A were used to purchase 17.7 million shares of the 
Company’s common stock in January 2007 (see note 8). The proceeds from the Term Loan B may be used for general corporate purposes. 
Availability under the 2007 Revolver at any time will be determined by certain financial ratios. As of June 30, 2007, the 2007 Revolver 
remained undrawn. 

The 2007 Revolver currently bears interest at a rate per annum, at CCOC’s election, equal to the prime rate of The Royal Bank of 
Scotland plc plus 0.625% or LIBOR plus 1.625%. The 2007 Term Loans bear interest at a rate per annum, at CCOC’s election, equal to the 
prime rate of The Royal Bank of Scotland plc plus 0.50% or LIBOR plus 1.50%. Interest on prime rate loans is due monthly while interest on 
LIBOR loans is due at the end of the interest period (one, two, three or six months) for which such LIBOR rate is in effect. The weighted 
average interest rate on the 2007 Term Loans is 6.89% as of June 30,2007. 

Maturities 
The following table shows the scheduled maturities for the total debt outstanding and reflects the anticipated payment dates for the 2005 

Tower Revenue Notes and 2006 Tower Revenue Notes. 

Year ending December 31, 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
Thereafter 

(In thousands of dollars) 
$ 4,875 

6,500 
300,325 

1,970,339 
3,106,500 

619,176 

Interest Rate Swap Agreements 
The Company has used interest rate swaps to manage and reduce its interest rate risk including the use of  forward starting interest rate 

swaps to hedge the variability of future interest rates on anticipated financings. The forward starting interest rate swaps call for the Company to 
pay interest at a fixed rate in exchange for receiving interest at a variable rate equal to LIBOR. The forward starting interest rate swaps are 
exclusive of any applicable margin that would be incremental to the interest rate of the anticipated financings. The swap activity for the six 
months ended June 30.2007 is as follows. 

In February and March 2007, the Company entered into interest rate swaps (“S1.55 Billion 2007 Interest Rate Swaps”) comprised of two 
five-year forward starting interest rate swap agreements with a combined notional amount of $1.55 billion to hedge the variability of future 
interest rates on the expected future refinancing in February 201 1 of the S 1.55 billion 2006 Mortgage Loan. Through the $1.55 Billion 2007 
Interest Rate Swaps, the Company has effectively fixed the interest rate on the expected future $1.55 billion of borrowings at a combined 
locked in rate of 5.26% (plus the applicable margin). 

In February 2007, the Company entered into interest rate swaps (“5294 Million 2007 Interest Rate Swaps”) comprised of two five-year 
forward starting interest rate swap agreements with a combined notional amount of $293.8 million to hedge the variability of the future interest 
rates on the expected future refinancing in December 2009 of the $293.8 million 2004 Mortgage Loan. Through the $294 Million 2007 Interest 
Rate Swaps, the Company has effectively fixed the interest rate on the expected future $293.8 million of borrowings at a combined locked in 
rate of approximately 5.13% (plus the applicable margin). 
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The following is a summary of the outstanding forward starting interest rate swaps as of June 30, 2007. The fair value of the interest rate 
swaps as of June 30, 2007 is included in “deferred financing costs and other assets” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. 

Pay Fixed 
Combined Fair Value at Forward Start Receive 

Forward Starting Interest Rate Swaps Kotional June 30,2007 Date Forward End Date Rate Variable Rate 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Variable to fixed: 
March 2006 Interest Rate Swam $1,900,000 $ 36,071 June 2010 June 20 15 5.18% LIBOR 
December 2006 Interest Rate Swaps 1,550,000 34,752 November 201 1 November 2016 5.14% LIBOR 
$1.55 Billion 2007 Interest Rate Swaps 1,550,000 26,515 February 201 1 February 2016 5.26% LIBOR 

Total $5,293,825 $ 103,085 
$294 Million 2007 Interest Rate Swaps 293,825 5,747 December 2009 December 2014 5.13% LlSOIi 

7. Redeemable Preferred Stock 

95% of the current market value of the common stock, as defined). For the six months ended June 30,2007, dividends on the 6.25% 
Convertible Preferred Stock were paid with approximately $10.0 million in cash. The Company may choose to continue cash payments of the 
dividends in the future in order to avoid dilution caused by the issuance of common stock as dividends on its preferred stock. 

The Company has the option to pay dividends on the 6.25% Convertible Preferred Stock in cash or shares of common stock (valued at 

8. Stockholders’ Equity 
Purchases and Issirances of the Company’s Common Stock 
In connection with the Global Signal Merger, the Company issued 98.1 million shares of common stock to the shareholders of Global 

Signal which were recorded at a value of $34.20 per share. See note 3. 

On January 19, 2007, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement with the Global Signal Significant Stockholders pursuant to 
which the Company purchased an aggregate of 17.7 million shares of its common stock from the Global Signal Significant Stockholders. The 
Company paid total consideration of $600.3 million in cash or approximately $33.89 per share to effect these purchases. The purchase of shares 
of common stock was primarily funded through borrowings under the 2007 Term Loan A. 

Secondary Stock Offering 

Stockholders and filed an automatic shelf registration statement with the SEC registering certain shares of common stock received by the 
Global Signal Significant Stockholders. On June 27,2007, the Global Signal Significant Stockholders announced a secondary offering of 
approximately 36.4 million shares of common stock pursuant to an automatic shelf registration statement previously filed with the SEC and the 
Stockholders Agreement. On July 5,2007, the secondary offering was completed. The Company did not receive any proceeds from the sale of 
the common stock by the selling stockholders. Following the completion of the secondary offering, the Global Signal Significant Stockholders 
have the right to require thc Company to conduct a marketed secondary offering related to an aggregate of 12.4 million shares, subject to 
certain restrictions. 

In connection with the Global Signal Merger, the Company entered into a Stockholders Agreement with the Global Signal Significant 
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9. Minority Interest 

including $37.2 million to the minority shareholder of CCAL. Upon issuance of the capital retum, the Company recorded a reduction in 
additional paid-in capital of $8.9 million as a result of the capital retum to the CCAL minority shareholders exceeding the carrying value of the 
minority interests in CCAL. 

In May 2007, CCAL (the Company’s 77.6% majority-owned subsidiary) issued a capital retum of approximately $166.0 million, 

10. Income Taxes 
The Company recorded a tax benefit of $15.6 million and $37.8 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007. 

As discussed in note 2, the Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Company recorded: (i) a 
decrease to its tax liabilities related to previously unrecorded tax benefits as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated deficit of 
$4.7 million and (ii) an increase to its deferred tax asset and related valuation allowance of $74.9 million related to previously unrecognized tax 
benefits. As of both the adoption of FIN 48 and June 30,2007, the Company had $74.9 million of unrecognized tax benefits. 

On January 12, 2007, the Company recorded deferred tax liabilities in connection with the purchase accounting related to the Global 
Signal Merger of $572.7 million. Additionally, as a result of recording this deferred tax liability, the Company reversed its federal deferred tax 
valuation allowance of  $286.1 million in purchase accounting with an offsetting adjustment to decrease goodwill arising from the Global 
Signal Merger by $289.0 million and a net charge of $2.9 million to other comprehensive income (loss) to reflect thc tax effect of items 
previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. The net charge of $2.9 million to other comprehensive income (loss) was 
comprised of a $6.7 million charge related to the unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities and a benefit of $3.8 million related to the net 
change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments. 

The Company records interest or penalties related to income taxes as components of income tax expense in its financial statements. The 
amount of interest and penalties accrued as of June 30, 2007 is immaterial. 

During 2007, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) commenced examination of the Company’s U.S. federal income tax retum for 2004. 
The IRS has not yet proposed any adjustment to the Company’s filing positions in connection with this examination. Upon completion of this 
examination, it  is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized benefits will change. Any adjustment to the unrecognized tax 
benefits would impact the benefit (provision) for income taxes. The Company does not currently expect the examination to be finalized within 
the next twelve months, and an estimate of the impact on the benefit (provision) for income taxes for any potential adjustment cannot be made 
at this time. However, the Company does not expect to make a significant cash payment as a result of any potential adjustment from the 
finalization of this examination. 

The Company’s U.S. federal and state income tax returns are generally not open to examination by taxing authorities for taxable years 
prior to 2003 except for years with operating loss carryforwards utilized in taxable years after 2003. 

11 .  Per Share Information 

computation and, if dilutive, the weighted-average number of potential shares of common stock resulting from the assumed exercise of 
outstanding stock options and warrants, conversion of convertible preferred stock and convertible senior notes and from the vesting of 
restricted common stock for the diluted computation. 

Per share information is based on the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period for the basic 
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A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations is as follows: 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Dividends on preferred stock 
Income (loss) from continuing operations applicable to common stock for basic and 

Income (loss) from discontinued opcrations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock for basic and diluted computations 
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period for basic 

Per common share-basic and diluted: 

diluted computations 

and diluted computations (in thousands) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Net income (loss) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

$ (13,335) $ (32,740) $ (25,714) $ (75,63 1 )  
(5,202) (5,202) (10,403) (10,403) 

(18,537) (37,942) (36,117) (86,034) 
- - 5,657 - 

$ (18,537) $ (37,942) $ (30,460) S (86,034) 

212,675 282,025 213,574 277,741 

$ (0.09) $ (0.13) $ (0.17) $ (0.31) 

$ (0.09) $ (0.13) $ (0.14) $ (0.31) 

2006 2007 -- 2006 2007 

~- 
---- 

---- 
- - 0.03 - -- 

~ ~ _ _ _ _ _  
The calculations of common shares outstanding for the diluted computations exclude the following potential common shares. The 

inclusion of such potential common shares in the diluted per share computations would be anti-dilutive since the Company incurred net losses 
from continuing operations for all periods presented. 

As of June 30, 
-- 2006 2007 

(In thousands) 
Options to purchase shares of common stock 6,580 5,335 
Warrants to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of $7.508 per share 590 381 

613 
Shares of 6.25% Convertible Preferred Stock which are convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion price of 

$36.875 per share 8,625 8,625 
Shares of restricted common stock 1,270 2,463 
4% Convertible Senior Notes which are convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion price of $10.83 per share 5,897 5,891 

-- 22,962 23,308 

GSI Warrants to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of $5.30 per share (see note 3) - 

-- Total potential common shares 

As of June 30, 2007, outstanding stock options include (i) less than 0.1 million options at exercise prices ranging from $1.74 to $4.00 per 
share and a weighted-average exercise price of $2.56 per share, (ii) 5.3 million options at exercise prices ranging from $4.01 to $36.27 per 
share and a weighted-average exercise price of $17.48 per share, and (iii) less than 0.1 million options at exercise prices ranging from $36.28 to 
S39.75 per share and a weighted-average exercise price of $37.95 per share. The options outstanding as of June 30, 2007 have a weighted 
average remaining contractual term of 3.1 years. 

12. Commitments and Contingencies 

lawsuit as described below. While there are uncertainties inherent in the ultimate outcome of such matters and i t  is impossible to presently 
determine the ultimate costs that may be incurred, or losses if any, management believes the resolution of such uncertainties and the incurrence 
of such costs should not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

The Company is involved in various claims, lawsuits and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business along with a derivative 
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In February 2007, plaintiffs filed a consolidated petition styled In Re Crown Castle International Corp. Derivative Litigation , Cause 
No. 2006-49592; in the 234 *Judicial District Court, Harris County, Texas which consolidated five shareholder derivative lawsuits filed in 
2006. The lawsuit names various of the Company’s current and former directors and officers. The lawsuit makes allegations relating to the 
Company’s historic stock option practices and alleges claims for breach of fiduciary duty and other similar matters. Among the forms of relief, 
the lawsuit seeks alleged monetary damages sustained by CCIC. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
Pursuant to its ground lease agreements, the Company has the obligation to perform certain asset retirement activities including 

requirements upon lease termination to remove towers or remediate the land upon which its towers reside. Accretion expense related to 
liabilities for contingent retirement obligations (included in depreciation, amortization and accretion on the Company’s consolidated statement 
of operations and comprehensive income (loss)) amounted to $0.7 million and $1.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, 
respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and June 30,2007, liabilities for contingent retirement obligations included in other liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheet amounted to S 18.5 million and $29.6 million (inclusive of the $9.9 million liability recorded in the preliminary 
allocation of the total purchase price for the Global Signal Merger), respectively. As of June 30, 2007, the estimated expected future cash 
outlay for asset retirement obligations was approximately S 1 .O billion. 

Sprint Nextel Property Tax Commitment 
As a result of a commitment that rcmained effective at the closing of the Global Signal Merger, the Company has an obligation to 

reimburse Sprint Nextel for property taxes Sprint Nextel will pay for the Company’s Sprint Towers. The Company paid $2,095 per tower for 
2007. The amount to be paid to Sprint Nextel increases by 3% each successive year through 2037, the expiration of the lease term. See note 3. 
The estimated future payments to Sprint Nextel under this agreement are as follows: 

Year ending December 31, Payments 
(In thousands o f  dollars) 

2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
20 12 and thereafter 

Operating Lease Commitments 
See note 13 for a discussion of the operating lease commitments. 

14,043 
14,422 
14,809 
15,234 

229,018 
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13. Leases 
Customer Leases 
The following table is a summary of the rental cash payments to the Company, as a lessor, by customers pursuant to non-cancelable lease 

agreements in effect as of June 30, 2007. Generally, the Company’s leases with its customers provide for (i) annual escalations and multiple 
renewal periods at the customer’s option and (ii) only limited termination rights at the customer’s options through the current term. The 
customer rental payments included in the table below are through the current term and do not assume exercise of customer renewal options. 

Customer Leases 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 3 1,2008 
Year ended December 3 1,2009 
Year ended December 3 1,2010 
Year ended December 3 1,201 1 
Year ended December 3 I ,  20 12 
Thereafter 

$ 1,156,787 
976,688 
710,138 
477,977 
329,472 
906,554 

Operating Leases 
The following table is a summary of rental cash payments owed by the Company, as lessee, to landlords pursuant to non-cancelable leasc 

agreements in effect as of June 30,2007. The Company is obligated under non-cancelable operating leases for land under its towers, space on 
towers owned by third parties that the Company manages, office space and equipment. The majority of the Company’s lease agreements have 
certain termination rights that provide for cancellation after a notice period. The majority of the land and managed tower leases have multiple 
renewal options at the Company’s option and annual escalations. The lease agreements for managed sites generally require either a minimum 
fixed lease payment or a contingent payment based on revenues or the gross margin at a site with some of the sites requiring both a fixed 
payment and a contingent payment based on revenues or gross margin. Certain of the land and managed tower leases have purchase options at 
the end of the original lease term. The operating lease payments included in the table below include payments for certain renewal periods at the 
Company’s option up to a maximum of 20 years. 

Operating Leases 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 3 1,2008 
Year ended December 3 1,2009 
Year ended December 31,2010 
Year ended December 3 I ,  201 1 
Year ended December 31,2012 
Thereafter 

s 237,420 
239,46 1 
24 1,400 
242,808 
244,768 

2,628,066 
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14. Operating Segments 

Company’s U.S. (including Puerto Rico) tower operations, (ii) CCAL, the Company’s Australian tower operations, and (iii) Emerging 
Businesses, the Company’s Modeo business (see note 18). Financial results for the Company are reported to management and the Board of 
Directors in this manner. The results of operations from the Global Signal Entities have been included in the CCUSA segment from January 12, 
2007. The Company has reclassified the Corporate Office and Other segment into the CCUSA segment reflecting the significance of the 
CCUSA segment to the consolidated business after the Global Signal Merger. Segment information for all periods has been reclassified to 
reflect this change in reportable segments. 

The Company’s reportable operating segments for the six months ended June 30, 2007 are (i) CCUSA, primarily consisting of the 

The measurement of profit or loss currently used by management to evaluate the results of operations for the Company and its operating 
segments is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted (“Adjusted EBITDA”). The Company defines 
Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus restructuring charges (credits), asset write-down charges, integration costs, depreciation, 
amortization and accretion, losses on purchases and redemptions of  debt, interest and other income (expense), interest expense and 
amortization of deferred financing costs, benefit (provision) for income taxes, minority interests, cumulative effect of change in accounting 
principle, income (loss) from discontinued operations and stock-based compensation charges. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as an 
alternative measure of operating results or cash flow from operations (as deterinincd in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles), and the Company’s measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. There 
are no significant revenues resulting from transactions between the Company’s operating segments. 
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Three Months Ended June 30,2006 Three Months Ended June 30,2007 
Consolidated 

Emerging Emerging Consolidated 
CCUSA CCAL Businesses Total CCUSA CCAL Businesses To tal --- 

(In thousands of dollars) 
Net revenues : 

Site rental 
Network services and other 

Costs of operations: (a) 

Site rental 
Network services and other 

General and administrative 
Corporate development 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs 
Depreciation, amortization and 

accretion 
Operating income (loss) 
Losses on purchases and redemptions 

Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of 

Benefit (provision) for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from continuing 

operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued 

operations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (at period end) 

of debt 

deferred financing costs 

$154,491 $14,669 $ - $ 169,160 S 303,665 $ 18,671 $ - $ 322,336 
22,696 1,920 - 24,6 16 18,652 1,882 - 20,534 

177,187 16,589 - 193,776 322,3 17 20,553 - 342,870 
--- 
--- 

46,310 4,175 442 50,927 106,132 5,187 847 112,166 
14,867 1,013 - 15,880 13,608 1,07 1 - 14,679 
23,026 2,799 - 25,825 30,953 3,263 - 34,2 16 

1,522 - - 1,522 3,336 - 55 3,391 
- - - - 5,069 - - 5,069 

489 - 2,197 2,686 732 - 1,3 79 2,111 

62,551 6,784 39 69,374 126,254 7,02 1 49 133,324 
28,422 1,818 (2,678) 27,562 36,233 4,011 (2,330) 37,914 

-- --- 

- - - - 
141 - 2,906 

(1) (8 8,790) 
- 15,620 

16 (390) 

(740) (740) - - 
(2,375) 176 - (2,199) 2,765 

(36,638) (817) - (37,455) (8 8,O 10) (779) 
(423) (84) 15,880 (260) 

(406) 
(507) - 

- 
4 27 (23) - - 

(1 1,754) 1,070 (2,651) (13,335) (33,132) 2,707 (2,315) (32,740) 

- - - - - -- - - - --- 
$(11,754) $ 1,070 $ (2,651) $ (13,335) $ (33,132) S 2,707 $ (32,740) $ (2,315) 
$ 17,675 $ 877 S 8,656 $ 27,208 $ 64,603 $ 9,322 $ 3,820 $ 77,745 

$1 0,283,968 $268,073 $68,982 $10,62 1,023 

--- --- -- 
(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately. 
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Six Months Ended June 30,2006 Six Months Ended June 30,2007 
Consolidated 

Emerging Emerging Consolidated 
CCUSA CCAL Businesses Total CCUSA CCAL Businesses Total --- 

(In thousands of dollars) 
Net revenues : 

Site rental 
Network services and other 

Costs of operations: (a) 

Site rental 
Network services and other 

General and administrative 
Corporate development 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs 
Depreciation, amortization and 

accretion 
Operating income (loss) 
Losses on purchases and redemptions 

Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of 

Benefit (provision) for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from continuing 

operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued 

operations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (at period end) 

of debt 

deferred financing costs 

$304,629 $26,428 S - S 331,057 $ 588,417 $ 33,711 $ - S 622,128 
41,678 3,706 - 45,384 32,798 3,653 - 36,45 1 

346,307 30,134 - 376,44 1 621,215 37,364 - 658,579 
--- 
- ~ -  

218,761 91,617 8,297 703 100,617 207,165 9,904 1,692 
27,584 2,082 - 29,666 24,258 2,194 - 26,452 
43,226 6,762 - 49,988 61,101 6,932 - 68,033 

847 - 3,517 4,364 1,652 - 1,644 3,296 
1,857 - - 1,857 4,688 - 55 4,743 

- - 13,917 - - 13,917 - - 

--- 128,267 13,128 70 141,465 258,539 13,381 97 272,O 17 
52,909 (135) (4,290) 48,484 49,895 4,953 (3,488) 5 1,360 

- - - - - (740) (740) - 
(3,848) 313 - (3,535) 6,005 306 (1 06) 6,205 

(68,018) (1,697) - (69,715) (169,183) (1,621) (1)  (170,805) 
(930) (193) - 38,132 (350) - 37,782 

38 (173) 
(1,123) 

- 89 1 24 915 (21 1) - --- 
(20,627) (82 1) (4,266) (25,714) (75,151) 3,077 (3,557) (75,631) 

5,657 - - 5,657 - - - 

$(14,970) $ (821) $ (4,266) $ (20,057) $ (75,151) $ 3,077 $ (3,557) $ (75,631) 
$ 32,836 $ 1,659 $ 14,779 $ 49,274 $ 107,375 -- $ 11,835 $ 5,715 $ 124,925 

$10,283,968 $268,073 $68,982 $10,621,023 

- -- --- 
--- -- 
~ - -  --- 

(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately. 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

The following are reconciliations of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007. 

Three Months Ended June 30,2006 Three Months Ended June 30 ,2007  
Consolidated Consolidated 

Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to increase (decrease) net income 

(loss): 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs (a) 

Depreciation, amortization and 

Losses on purchases and redemptions of 

Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of 

(Benefit) provision for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from discontinued 

Stock-based compensation charges (b) 

accretion 

debt 

deferred financing costs 

operations, net of tax 

Adjusted EBITDA 

Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to increase (decrease) net income 

(loss): 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs 
Depreciation, amortization and 

accretion 
Losses on purchases and redemptions of 

debt 
Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of 

(Benefit) provision for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from discontinued 

Stock-based compensation charges (b) 

deferred financing costs 

operations, net of tax 

Adjusted EBITDA 

Emerging Emerging 
Total --- CCUSA CCAL Businesses CCUSA CCAL Businesses Total 

(In thousands of dollars) 
$(11,754) $ 1,070 $ (2,651) $ (13,335) $(33,132) $ 2,707 $ (2,315) $ (32,740) 

1,522 - - 1,522 3,336 - 55 3,391 
- 5,069 - - - - 5,069 - 

62,551 6,784 39 69,374 126,254 7,021 49 133,324 

- - - - - 740 740 - 

2,375 (176) - 2,199 (2,765) (141) - (2,906) 

36,638 817 - 37,455 88,010 779 1 88,790 
423 84 - 507 (15,880) 260 - (1 5,620) 
- 23 (27) (4) - 406 (16) 390 

4,835 171 374 5,380 6,045 430 207 6,682 
$ 97,330 $ 8,773 $ (2,265) $ 103,838 $11,462 $176,937 $ (2,019) $ 186,380 

--- --- 
--- -- --- 

Six Months Ended June 30,2006 Six Months Ended June 30 ,2007  
Consolidated 

Emerging 
CCUSA CCAL Businesses Total CCUSA 

(In thousands of dollars) 
- - ~  
$ (14,970) $ (821) $ (4,266) $ (20,057) $ (75,151) 

1,857 - - 1,857 4,688 
- - 13,917 - - 

128,267 13,128 70 141,465 258,539 

740 - - 740 - 
3,848 (313) - 3,535 (6,005) 

68,018 1,697 - 69,715 169,183 
930 193 - 1,123 (38,132) 

- (891) (24) (9 15) - 

- (5,657) (5,657) - - 
7,069 1,326 499 8,894 10,268 

$190,102 $14,319 $ (3,721) $ 200,700 $337,307 
--- 
--- 

Consolidated 
Emerging 

CCAL Businesses Total -- 
$ 3,077 $ (3,557) $ (75,631) 

- 55 4,743 
- 13,917 - 

13,38 1 97 272,017 

1,62 1 1 170,805 
350 - (37,782) 
21 1 (38) 173 

1,763 (430) 11,601 
$20,097 $ (3,766) $ 353,638 -~ 

(a) including stock-based compensation expense 
(b) exclusive of charges included in integration costs 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

15. Stock-Based Compensation 
Restricted Common Stock 
A summary of restricted stock activity for the six months ended June 30, 2007 is as follows: 

Shares outstanding at December 3 1,2006 
Shares granted 
Shares assumed in the Global Signal Merger 
Shares vested 
Shares forfeited 
Shares outstanding at June 30,2007 

Six Months Ended 
June 30,2007 

(In thousands of shares) 
1,227 
1,294 

92 

The following is a summary of the restricted stock awards granted during the six months ended June 30,2007: 

Grant Date Fair 
Grant Shares Requisite 

Itcstricted Stock Award Date Awarded Value Service Period 
(In  

thousands 

Performance awards for executives 
Performance awards for non-executive employees 
Integration awards 
One-off RSA awards 

Total 
Weighted average 

of shares) (In dollars) (In years) 
February 279 $ 27.54 1.9 
February 260 34.50 2.8 
February 673 14.58 1.9 
Various 82 34.46 2.2 

$ 22.64 2.1 
1,294 

The performance restricted stock awards contain provisions for accelerated vesting based on the market performance of the Company’s 
common stock. The performance restricted stock awards to executives also contain provisions that result in forfeiture by the employee of any 
unvested shares in the event the Company’s common stock does not achieve the target of $41.40 per share for 20 consecutive trading days 
which include any dates on or before February 22,20 1 1. The integration restricted stock awards were granted to executives and employees 
deemed to be integral to the successful integration of Global Signal. The integration restricted stock awards contain provisions that result in 
forfeiture by the employee of any unvested shares in the event the Company’s common stock does not achieve the market performance target 
of $44.50 per share for 20 consecutive trading days which include any dates on or between July 1,2008 and December 3 1,2008. However, to 
the extent that the requisite service period is rendered, compensation cost for accounting purposes will not be reversed for either performance 
restricted stock awards or the integration restricted stock awards; rather, it will be recognized regardless of whether or not the market 
performance targets are achieved. 

derived service period for awards with accelerated vesting provisions granted in the six months ended June 30, 2007 were as follows: 
The weighted-average assumptions used in the determination of the grant date fair value for the awards with market conditions and the 

Risk-free rate 
Expected volatility 
Expected dividend rate 

4.7% 
28% 

0% 

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense related to restricted stock awards of $5.4 million and $10.2 million for the 
six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The unrecognized compensation expense (net of estimated forfeitures) related to 
restricted stock awards as of June 30, 2007 is $30.5 million. 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

CCIC Stock Options 
The Company has not granted CCIC stock options since awarding 55,000 options during the year ended December 3 1,2003 and has not 

granted options to any member of executive management since October 2001. During the six months ended June 30,2007, 0.7 million options 
were exercised with a weighted-average exercise price of $19.10 per share. The Company received cash of S13.2 million from the exercise of 
these options. See note 1 1. 

Stock-Based Compensation Expense 
The components of stock-based compensation expense from continuing operations are as follows: 

Three iMonths Ended J u n e  30,2006 Three Months Ended June 30,2007 
Emerging Emerging 

Stock-based compensation expense: 
Site rental costs of operations 
Network services and other costs of operations 
General and administrative expenses 
Corporate development 
Integration costs 

Stock-based compensation expense: 
Site rental costs of operations 
Network services and other costs of operations 
General and administrative expenses 
Corporate development 
Integration costs 

CCUSA CCAL Business Total CCUSA CCAL Business Total -------- 
(In thousands of dollars) ( In  thousands of dollars) 

$ 50 $ -  $ - $ 50 $ 128 $ -  $ - $ 128 
106 

4,537 171 - 4,708 5,798 430 - 6,228 
188 - 374 562 13 - 207 220 

159 

- 60 - - 60 106 - 

- 159 - - - - - -------- 
$4,835 $ 171 $ 374 $5,380 s 6,204 $ 430 $ 207 $ 6,841 -------- 

Six Months Ended June 30.2006 
Emerging 

CCUSA CCAL Business Total 
( I n  thousands of  dollars) 

---- 

$ 66 $ -  $ - $ 66 
80 

6,672 1,326 - 7,998 
251 - 499 750 

$7,069 $1,326 $ 499 $8,894 

- ao - 

- - - - ---- 
---- 
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Six Months Ended June 30,2007 
Emerging 

CCUSA CCAL Business Total 
(In thousands of dollars) 

---- 

$ 194 $ - $ - $ 194 
175 

9,706 1,763 - 1 1,469 
193 - (430) (237) 

790 
$11,058 $1,763 $ (430) $12,391 

- 175 - 

- 790 - ---- 
---- 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

16. Restructuring Charges, Integration Costs and Asset Write-Down Charges 
At December 3 1,2006 and June 30, 2007, other accrued liabilities include $0.2 million and S0.7 million, respectively, related to 

restructuring charges. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Company paid $0.2 million in restructuring charges, all of which was 
previously accrued. As a result of preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the Global Signal Merger, the Company recorded a 
restructuring accrual at CCUSA of $0.7 million primarily related to obligations under an office space lease. 

During the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, the Company abandoned or disposed of certain towers and recorded asset write- 
down charges at CCUSA of $1.9 million and $4.7 million, respectively. 

During the six months cndcd June 30, 2007, the Company incurred integration costs at CCUSA related to the Global Signal Merger of 
E 13.9 million, virtually all of which was paid. Thc intcgration costs included, among other things, expenses for retention bonus obligations with 
employees of the former Global Signal of $7.3 million and stock-based compensation charges of $0.8 million related to restricted common 
stock assumed in the Global Signal Merger. 

See also note 18. 

17. Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
Supplemental disclosurcs of cash flow information and non-cash investing and financing activitics are as follows: 

Six Months Ended 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Interest paid 
Income taxes paid 

Increase (decrease) in the fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of tax 
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities: 

June 30, 
2006 2007 
(In thousnnds o f  dollars) 

S61,292 $ 150,565 
1,393 2,099 

- (33,287) 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities: 
Common stock issued and assumption of warrants and restricted common stock in connection with the 

Common stock issued in connection with the conversion of debt 
Common stock issued in connection with the exercise of warrants 
Increase (decrease) in the fair value of interest rate swaps, net of tax (note 6) 

Global Signal Merger (note 3) - 3,373,907 
100 37 

1,215 5,009 
37,07 1 69,435 
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued) 

18. Subsequent Events 
Spectrum Lease and Modeo Investment 
On July 23,2007, the Company entered into a lease of its US. nationwide 1670 - 1675 MHz spectrum (“Spectrum”). The Spectrum is 

leased to a venture formed by Telcom Ventures, LLC and Columbia Capital LLC (“CCTV”) for a $13 million annual lease fee beginning 
July 23, 2007 until October 1,  2013. Upon the expiration of the initial term of the lease, CCTV will have the right to acquire the Spectrum for 
$130 million, escalated at the consumer price index (“CPI”) from July 2007, or to renew the lease for a period of up to ten years on the same 
terms, subject to the annual lease fee increasing to $14.3 million. As part of such transaction, the Company has also transferred for nominal 
consideration the subsidiary holding the assets related to its trial network in New York City. In addition, the Company will be the preferred 
provider of tower infrastructure for future tower sites during the term of the lease if and as the Spectrum is deployed by CCTV. In conjunction 
with the abovc transactions, thc Company expects to record a chargc to earnings related to the write-off of all or substantially all of its Modeo 
assets, other than the Spectrum, totaling approximately $57 million in the third quarter of 2007. The Company also plans to discontinue 
reporting Emerging Businesses, which currently is comprised of the Modeo business, as a reportable segment beginning in the third quarter of 
2007. 
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ITEM 2. 
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the response to Part I, Item 1 of this report and the consolidated financial 

statements of the Company including the related notes and “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations (“MDtkA”)” included in our 2006 Form 10-K. Any capitalized terms used but not defined in this Item have the same meaning 
given to them in our 2006 Form 10-K. Unless this Form 10-Q indicates otherwise or the context requires, the terms “we,” “our,” “our 
company,” “the company,” or “us” as used in this Form 10-Q refer to Crown Castle Intemational Corp. and its subsidiaries including the 
Global Signal Entities following the completion of the Global Signal Merger. The Global Signal Entities were included in our consolidated 
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) from January 12,2007. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Management Overview 
General Overview 

We own, operate and lease towers for wireless communications. Our customers lease space on our towers for antennas and other 
equipment necessary for the transmission of wireless signals for mobile telephones and other devices. This site rental leasing activity represents 
approximately 94% of our second quarter 2007 consolidated revenues. We engage in such activities through a variety of structures including 
subleasing and management arrangements. Information concerning our tower portfolio as of June 30, 2007, is as follows. 

We owned, leased or managed 23,725 towers, including the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger (see 
“MD&A-Management Overview-Acquisition of Global Signal ” below). 

We have the most towers (exclusive ofrooftop installations) in the U.S. of any wireless tower company with approximately 21,700 
towers. 
We also have 1,438 towers in Australia, and the remainder of our towers are located in Puerto Rico and Canada. 

Our customers currently include many of the world’s major wireless communications companies, including Sprint Nextel, AT&T, 
Verizon Wireless, T-Mobile, Alltel, Optus and Vodafone Australia. 
55% and 72% of our towers in the U.S. and Puerto Rico were located in the 50 and 100 largest BTAs, respectively. 
We lease, sublease or license the land on which approximately 18,600 of our towers reside. 

We own in fee or have permanent or long-term easements in the land on which approximately 4,400 of our towers reside. 

Business Fundamentals 

appropriate, to continue to build, acquire and operate additional towers and wireless infrastructure. Highlights of our business fundamentals are 
as follows. as discussed further herein or in our 2006 Form 10-K: 

Our strategy is to increase our recumng revenue and cash flow by leasing space on our towers to wireless companies and, where 

Potential growth resulting from wireless network expansion 
Site rental revenue under long-term leases with contracted escalations 
High quality revenue stream 

Long-term control of our assets 
Relatively fixed tower operating costs 
High incremental margins on organic revenue growth 
Minimal sustaining capital expenditure requirements 
Majority of our outstanding debt rated investment grade and have fixed rate coupons 

Significant cash flow from operations 
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Acquisition of Global Signal 

exclusive of  debt of approximately $1.8 billion that remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities we acquired. 
On January 12, 2007, we completed the Global Signal Merger in a stock and cash transaction valued at approximately $4.0 billion, 

Global Signal revenues, cost of operations and gross margins for the year ended December 31,2006 were approximately $496.0 million, 
$221.2 million and $274.7 million, respectively. See note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for our unaudited pro forma consolidated 
results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007 as if the Global Signal Merger were completed as of the beginning of 
each respective period. We entered into the Global Signal Merger primarily because of the growth opportunities we anticipate the Global 
Signal tower portfolio will provide including through leveraging our management team and customer service across an enhanced national 
footprint. We believe the opportunity for growth will be driven by the carrier focus on improving network quality, subscriber growth, 
increasing subscriber usage, wire line replacement and next generation network builds. See '' MD&A-Management Overview-Revenue and 
Margin Growth ." Secondarily, we believe there will be synergistic opportunities provided by the Global Signal Merger. In 2007, as a result of 
the Global Signal Merger, wc do expcct an increase in general and administrative expenses in nominal dollars. However, we cxpect a decrcase 
in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues. We also expect to incur costs of between approximately $24 million to $33 
million for the year ended December 3 1, 2007 to integrate the Global Signal Entities into our internal control structure and operations, 

As a result of the completion of the Global Signal Merger, we issued approximately 98.1 million shares of common stock to the 
shareholders of Global Signal and paid the maximum Cash Consideration of $550.0 million and reserved for issuance approximately 
0.6 million shares of common stock issuable pursuant to Global Signal warrants. As a result of the Global Signal Merger, Global Signal 
common stockholders were entitled to convert each share of Global Signal common stock into 1.6 1 shares of our common stock or, 
alternatively, could elect to receive cash in the amount of $55.95 per Global Signal share. Upon completion of the Global Signal Merger, the 
former Global Signal shareholders owned approximately 32.7% of our outstanding shares. See note 3 to our consolidated financial statements 
and our 2006 Form 10-K for a further discussion of the Global Signal Merger. 

The total purchase price of approximately $4.0 billion includes the fair value of common stock issued (using a $34.20 per share value) of 
$3.4 billion, the Cash Consideration, the fair value of Global Signal restricted common stock and warrants assumed and estimated transaction 
costs, The preliminary allocation of the total purchase price for the Global Signal Merger, subject to future adjustment in the allocation of the 
purchase price, can be found in note 3 to our consolidated financial statements. We expect to finalize the purchase price allocation in the third 
quarter of 2007. See "MD&A-Accounting and Reporting Matters-Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates. ' I  

2006. Upon closing of the Global Signal Merger, the Global Signal Entities had debt outstanding of approximately $1.8 billion; all of which 
remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities we acquired. Such debt included the 2004 Mortgage Loan and the 2006 
Mortgage Loan which have a structure similar to our 2005 Tower Revenue Notes and 2006 Tower Revenue Notes. See '' MDbA-Liquidity 
and Capital Resources-Financing Activities " for further discussion of the impact of the additional debt as a result of the Global Signal 
Merger. 

We financed the Cash Consideration primarily with cash received from the issuance of the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes in November 

Revenue and Margin Growth 
Our net revenues grew for the three months ended June 30,2007 by $149.1 million, or 76.9%, to $342.9 million from the three months 

ended June 30, 2006. Our net revenues grew for the six months ended June 30,2007 by $282.1 million, or 74.9%, to $658.6 million from the 
six months ended June 30, 2006. The increase in net revenues was driven by an increase in site rental revenues that was primarily related to the 
towers acquired on January 12, 2007 in connection with the Global Signal Merger (see "MDBA-Segment Results of Operations-CCUSA '7 . 
The remaining increase in site rental revenues was primarily from new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations) on our 
existing towers and, to a lesser extent, new towers acquired or built during or after the first quarter of 2006. New customer additions and 
modifications were influenced by on-going demand for additional antenna space primarily due to the continued strong growth in wireless 
minutes of use, the 
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introduction of new data services by wireless carriers and the launch of new wireless networks. We expect network services revenues to 
continue to be somewhat volatile as a percentage of total net revenues as these revenues are typically not under long-term contract. 

We generally receive monthly rental payments from customers, payable under site leases. New leases recently entered into by CCUSA 
typically have original terms of seven to 10 years (with three or four optional renewal periods of five years each) and provide for annual price 
increases based upon a consumer price index, a fixed percentage or a combination thereof. As a result of our long-term (five to 10 year) 
contracts with our customers, in any given year approximately 95% of our site rental revenues, excluding acquisitions, are contracted for in a 
prior year and are of a recurring nature. 

Site rental gross margins (site rental revenues less site rental costs of operations) for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased by 
$91.9 million, or 77.8%, to $210.2 million from the three months ended June 30,2006. Site rental gross margins (site rental revenues less site 
rental costs of operations) for the six months ended June 30,2007 increased by $172.9 million, or 75.0%, to $403.4 million from the six 
months ended June 30,2006. The increase in the site rental gross margins was primarily driven by the increase in site rental revenues. We 
expect that increascs in site rcntal rcvcnues resulting from new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations) on our existing 
towers will have a high incremental margin (percentage of revenue growth converted to gross margin) given the relatively fixed nature of the 
costs to operate our towers. 

We believe the demand for our towers will continue for a variety of reasons including the wireless industry’s dramatic growth of minutes 
of use, wireless data service revenues and new subscribers. The demand for towers depends on the demand for antenna space by our customers 
which in tum depends on the demand for wireless telephony and data services from their customers. Important indicators of this demand are 
wireless minutes of use, the volume of non-telephony wireless services such as data, text messaging and mobile video and, to a lesser extent, 
the number of new wireless subscribers. The demand for our towers is also influenced by the launch of new wireless networks and the 
availability of new spectrum to our customers. Highlights of the Cellular Telecommunications & Intemet Association (“CTIA”) U.S. wireless 
industry survey issued on March 28, 2007 are as follows: 

Minutes of use grew by 20% from 2005 to nearly 1.7 trillion minutes of use for 2006; 

Wireless data service revenues for 2006 were $15.2 billion, an increase of 77% from 2005; and 

Wireless users totaled 233 million as of December 3 1,2006, which represents a year-over-year increase of 25 million subscribers, 
or 12.1%. 

The impact of anticipated increases to site rental revenues from the demand for new towers may be tempered somewhat by recent carrier 
consolidation (including AT&T merging with Cingular Wireless in 2006 and Sprint merging with Nextel in 2005) which could result in 
duplicate or overlapping networks. However, we expect that the termination of leases as a result of recent carrier consolidation will be spread 
over multiple quarters. In addition, we believe we are adding more leases per quarter from all of our customers than the total number of leases 
we believe will eventually be terminated as a result of the two mergers noted above. Consequently, we currently do not believe that lease 
terminations from carrier consolidation will have a material adverse affect on our results for any quarter. 

Indebtedness 

shares of our common stock was primarily funded with $600.0 million of the proceeds from the term loans (see “MD&A-Management 
Overview-Purchases and Investments ” ). During the first quarter of 2007, CCOC also entered into a currently undrawn revolving credit 
facility for $250.0 million that matures in January 2008. We may use the remaining $50.0 million borrowed under the term loans and the 
availability under the credit facility for general corporate purposes which may include financing of capital expenditures, acquisitions and 
purchases of our common or preferred stock. See note 6 to our consolidated financial statements and “MD&A-Liquidity and Capital 
Resources-Financing Activities . ’ I  

During the first quarter of 2007, CCOC entered into two term loans due in 2014 that totaled $650.0 million. Our purchase of 17.7 million 

See “MD&A-Liquidity and Capital Resources-Financing Activities ” for a discussion of the 2004 Mortgage Loan and the 2006 
Mortgage Loan that remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities we 
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acquired. See “Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” and note 6 to our consolidated financial statements for a 
discussion of the interest rate swaps we entered into during the first quarter of 2007 that have effectively locked in the interest rate on the 
rollover of the 2006 Mortgage Loan to February 2016 and the 2004 Mortgage Loan to December 2014. 

Purchases and Investments 

Stockholders, or approximately 6% of our outstanding shares following the Global Signal Merger. We paid $600.3 million in cash or 
approximately $33.89 per share to effect these purchases. The purchase of shares of common stock was primarily funded through borrowings 
under a term loan (see “MD&A-Management Overview-Indebtedness ” above). We expect to continue to opportunistically purchase our own 
stock from time to time. See “MD&l--Liquidity and Capital Resources - Overview” for further discussion. 

In January 2007, we purchased an aggregate of 17.7 million shares of our common stock from the Global Signal Significant 

Siiectrum Lease and Modeo Investtnent 

July 23, 2007 until October 1, 2013. Upon the expiration of the initial term of the lease, CCTV will have the right to acquire the Spectrum for 
$130 million, escalated at CPI from July 2007, or to renew the lease for a period of up to ten years on the same terms, subject to the annual 
lease fee increasing to $14.3 million. As part of such transaction, we also transferred for nominal consideration our subsidiary holding the 
assets related to our trial network in New York City. In addition, we will be the preferred provider of tower infrastructure for future tower sites 
during the term of the lease if and as the Spectrum is deployed by CCTV. See “Part 11-Other Informantion-Item 1A. Risk Factors. ” 

As a result of the transactions described above, substantially all of our future operating and administrative expenses in Modeo are 
expected to be eliminated, We also expect to write-off all or substantially all of our Modeo assets, other than the Spectrum, in the third quarter 
of 2007. 

On July 23, 2007, we entered into a lease of our Spectrum. The Spectrum is leased to CCTV for a $13 million annual lease fee beginning 

Secondary Stock Offering 

and filed an automatic shelf registration statement with the SEC registering certain shares of common stock received by the Global Signal 
Significant Stockholders. On June 27, 2007, the Global Signal Significant Stockholders announced a secondary offering of approximately 
36.4 million shares of common stock pursuant to an automatic shelf registration statement previously filed with the SEC and the Stockholders 
Agreement. On July 5,2007, the secondary offering was completed. We did not receive any proceeds from the sale of the common stock by the 
selling stockholders. Following the completion of the secondary offering, the Global Signal Significant Stockholders have the right to require 
us to conduct a marketed secondary offering related to an aggregate of 12.4 million shares, subject to certain restrictions. 

In connection with the Global Signal Merger, we entered into a Stockholders Agreement with the Global Signal Significant Stockholders 
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Consolidated Results of Operations 
Comparison of Three and Six Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 

The following information is derived from our historical consolidated statements of operations for the periods indicated 

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended 
June 30,2006 June 30,2007 

Percent Percent Percent 

Amount Revenues Change Change 
of >et of k e t  Dollar 

Amount Revenues -- 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Net revenues: 
Site rental 
Network services and other 

Operating expenses: 
Costs of operations : 

Site rental 
Network services and other 

Total costs of operations 
General and administrative 
Corporate development 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs 
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 

Operating income (loss) 
Loss on purchases and redemptions of debt 
Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and 

Benefit (provision) for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 

minority interests 

$169,160 87.3% $322,336 94.0% $153,176 90.6% 
12.7% 20,534 6.0% (4,082) (1 6.6)% 

193,776 100.0% 342,870 100.0% 149,094 76.9% 
-- 24,6 16 ~- 

-- -- 

*: Percentage is not meaningful 
(a) exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately. 
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50,927 
15,880 
66,807 
25,825 

2,686 
1,522 

69,374 
27,562 

- 

(740) 
(2,199) 

(37,455) 

30.1% 112,166 34.8% 
64.5% 14,679 71.5% 
34.5% 126,845 37.0% 
13.3% 34,216 10.0% 

1.4% 2,111 0.6% 
0.8% 3,391 1 .O% 
- 5,069 1.5% 
35.8% 133,324 38.8% 
14.2% 37,914 11.1% 
-- 

(0.4)% - - 
( l . l )% 2,906 0.8% 

(19.3)% (88,790) (25.9)% 

61,239 
(1,201) 
60,038 

8,391 
(575) 

1,869 
5,069 

63,950 
10,352 

740 
5,105 

(5 1,335) 

120.2% 
(7.6)% 
89.9% 
32.5% 

(2 1.4)yo * 
* 

92.2% 
37.6% * 

* 
137.1% 

(12,832) (6.6)% (47,970) (14.0)% (35,138) * 
(507) (0.3)% 15,620 4.6% 16,127 * 

* - 4 (390) (0.1)% (394) 
(13,335) (6.9)% (32,740) ( 9 3 %  (19,405) * 

$(13,335) (6.9)% S(32,740) ( 9 . 3 %  $(19,405) * 
- - - - - * -- -- 
-- -- 
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Six  Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30,2006 June 30,2007 

Percent Percent Percent 
of Net of Net Dollar 

Amount Revenues Amount Revenues Change Chsnge -- 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Net revenues: 
Site rental $33 1,057 87.9% $ 622,128 94.5% $ 291,071 87.9% 
Network services and other 45,384 12.1% 36,45 1 5.5% (8,933) (19)% -- 

376,441 100.0% 658,579 100.0% 282,138 74.9% -- 
Operating expenses: 

Costs of operations (a) : 
Site rental 
Network services and other 

Total costs of operations 
General and administrative 
Corporate development 
Asset write-down charges 
Integration costs 
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 

Operating income (loss) 
Loss on purchases and redemptions of debt 
Interest and other income (expense) 
Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and 

Benefit (provision) for income taxes 
Minority interests 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net 
of tax 
Net income (loss) 

minority interests 

30.4% 
65.4% 
34.6% 
13.3% 

1.1% 
0.5% 

35.2% 
72.6% 
37.2% 
10.3% 
0.5% 
0.7% 
2.1% 

1 17.4% 
(10.8)% 
88.2% 
36.1% 

(24.5)% * 
* 

92.3% 
5.9% * 

* 
145.0% 

218,761 
26,452 

245,213 
68,033 

3,296 
4,743 

13,917 

118,144 
(3 92 14) 

114,930 
18,045 
(1,068) 
2,886 

13,917 
130,552 

2,876 
740 

9,740 
(10 1,090) 

100,6 17 
29,666 

130,283 
49,988 

4,364 
1,857 

41.4% 
7.8% 

141,465 
48,484 

(740) 
(3,535) 

(69,7 15) 

37.6% 
12.9% 

(0.9)% 
(1 8.6)% 

(0.2)% 

272,017 
5 1,360 
- 

6,205 
(1 70,805) 

- 
0.9% 

(25.9)% 

(25,506) 
(1 2 123) 

(6.8)% 
(0.3)% 

(1 13,240) 
37,782 

(17.2)% 
5.7% 

(87,734) 
38,905 

(173) 
(75,631) 

915 
(25,7 14) 

0.3% 
(6.8)Yo (1 1.5)% 

* 
* 

5,657 
S (20,057) 

1.5% 
(5.3)% 

(5,657) 
$ (75,631) (1 1.5)% $ (55,574) 

*: Percentage is not meaningfbl 
(a) exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately. 

Site rental revenues are recognized on a monthly basis over the fixed, non-cancelable term of the relevant lease, agreement or contract 
with such terms generally ranging from five years to 10 years. In accordance with applicable accounting standards, these revenues are 
recognized on a monthly basis regardless of whether the payments from the customer are received in equal monthly amounts. If the payment 
terms call for fixed escalations (as in fixed dollar or fixed percentage increases), the effect of such increases is recognized on a straight-line 
basis over the fixed, non-cancelable term of the agreement. When calculating our straight-line rental revenues, we consider all fixed elements 
of escalation provisions in our customer leases even if such escalation provisions also include a variable element. As a result of this accounting 
method, a portion of the revenues recognized in a given period represents cash collected in other periods. As previously mentioned, in any 
given year approximately 95% of our site rental revenues, excluding acquisitions, are contracted for in a prior year and are of a recurring 
nature. 

Net revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $149.1 million, or 76.9%, to $342.9 million from the three months 
ended June 30, 2006. Net revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $282.1 million, or 74.9%, to $658.6 million from the 
six months ended June 30, 2006. The increase in net revenues for the three and six months ended June 30,2007 resulted from an increase in 
site rental revenues of $153.2 million and $291.1 million, respectively, or 90.6% and 87.9%, from the same periods in the prior year. CCUSA 
accounted for 97.4% and 97.4%, respectively, of the total increase in site rental revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 
from the same periods in the prior year. The increase in site rental revenues was primarily related to the towers acquired on January 12, 2007 in 
connection with the Global Signal Merger (see 
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“MDbA-Segment Results ofOpevations-CCUSA ”) . The remaining increase in our site rental revenues was primarily driven by new tenant 
additions (or modifications to existing installations) and, to a lesser extent, the leases related to the 474 towers acquired from Mountain Union 
in July 2006 (see “MDbA-Segment Results of Operations-CCLISA ” ). 

are generally recognized under a method which approximates the completed contract method. This method is used because these services are 
typically completed in relatively short periods of time and financial position and results of operations do not vary significantly from those 
which would result from use of the percentage-of-completion method. These services are considered complete when the terms and conditions 
of the contract or agreement have been completed. Costs and revenues associated with contracts not complete at the end of a period are 
deferred and recognized when the installation becomes operational. Any losses on contracts are recognized at such time as they become known. 

Network services and other revenues for the three months ended June 30,2007 decreased by $4.1 million, or 16.6%, from the three 
months ended June 30,2006. Network services and other revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007 decreased by $8.9 million, or 
19.7%, from the six months cndcd June 30,2006. The decreasc in the network services and other revenues reflects the variable nature of the 
network services business as these revenues are typically not under long-term contract. The towers acquired from Global Signal did not have a 
significant impact on the network services revenues for the first and second quarter of 2007 since Global Signal did not operate a network 
services business. However, we expect the Global Signal Merger to positively impact network services revenues in the future as we begin to 
market our services for the Global Signal towers. 

Network services revenues generally represent installation of antennas, lines and construction services for co-locations on our towers and 

Costs of operations consist primarily of ground leases, repairs and maintenance, utilities, property taxes, employee compensation and 
related benefit costs, insurance and monitoring costs. Generally, our ground lease agreements are specific to each site and are for an initial term 
of five years and are renewable for pre-detennined periods. Ground lease expense is recognized on a monthly basis rcgardless of whether the 
lease agreement payment terms require us to make payments annually, quarterly or in equal monthly amounts. If the payment terms include 
fixed escalation provisions, the effect of such increases is recognized on a straight-line basis. We calculate straight-line ground lease expense 
using a time period that equals or exceeds the remaining depreciable life of the tower asset. Further, when a customer has exercisable renewal 
options that would compel us to exercise existing ground lease renewal options, we have straight-lined ground lease expense over a sufficient 
portion of such ground lease renewals to coincide with the final termination of the customer’s renewal options. Because our tower operating 
expenses generally do not increase significantly as we add additional customers, once a tower has an anchor customer, additional customers 
provide significant incremental cash flow and gross margin. 

months ended June 30,2006. Site rental gross margins for the six months ended June 30,2007 increased by $172.9 million, or 75.0%, to 
$403.4 million from the six months ended June 30, 2006. The increase in the site rental gross margins was related to the previously mentioned 
increase in site rental revenues primarily driven by the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger (from the date of 
acquisition) and, to a lesser extent, from new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations) and the 474 towers acquired from 
Mountain Union. 

Site rental gross margins for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $91.9 million, or 77.8%, to $210.2 million from the three 

34 



Index to Financial Statements 

Site rental gross margins were affected by the non-cash portions of site rental revenues, ground lease expenses, stock-based compensation 
expenses for those employees directly related to US. tower operations and the amortization of below-market and above-market leases. The 
non-cash impact on site rental gross margins for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 related to the towers acquired from Global 
Signal was $2.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively. The following is a summary of the components of the non-cash portions of our site 
rental gross margins. 

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30, 
2006 2007 2006 2007 

(In thousands of dollars) 
Non-cash impact on site rental gross margins: 

Non-cash portion of site rental revenues attributable to straight-line recognition 

Non-cash portion of ground lease expense attributable to straight-line 
of revenues $ 5,190 $ 10,924 $ 10,528 $ 21,537 

recognition of expcnses (4,360) (8,93 1) (8,642) (1 8,786) 
(66) (1 94) 
- 160 

Stock-based compensation expenses (50) (128) 
68 Net amortization of below-market and above-market leases - 

Total $ 780 $ 1,933 $ 1,820 $ 2,717 

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $8.4 million, or 32.5%, from the three 
months ended June 30,2006 but decreased to 10.0% of net revenues from 13.3%. General and administrative expenses for the six months 
ended June 30, 2007 increased by $18.0 million, or 36.1%, from the six months ended June 30,2006 but decreased to 10.3% of net revenues 
from 13.3%. General and administrative expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 included stock-based compensation 
expense of $6.2 million and $1 1.5 million, respectively, which represents an increase of $1.5 million and $3.5 million from same period in the 
prior year (see “MDbA-Segment Results of Operations-CCUSA ’7 . The remainder of the increase in general and administrative expenses 
was primarily related to headcount additions and related other employee costs as a result of the Global Signal Merger. We anticipate that 
general and administrative expenses will decrease as a percentage of net revenue due to certain cost savings that may result from the Global 
Signal Merger; however, there can be no assurance that these cost savings will be achieved. 

the Global Signal Merger. See “MD&A-Segment Results of Operations-CCUSA. ” 

Integration costs for the three and six months ended June 30,2007 were $5.1 million and $13.9 million, respectively and were related to 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $64.0 million, or 92.2%, from the three 
months ended June 30,2006, virtually all of which related to CCUSA. Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the six months ended 
June 30, 2007 increased by $130.6 million, or 92.3%, from the six months ended June 30, 2006, virtually all of which related to CCUSA. The 
increase for the three and six months ended June 30,2007 was primarily attributable to depreciation and amortization of property and 
equipment and intangible assets recorded in connection with the preliminary purchase price allocation for the Global Signal Merger. See 
“MDbA-Segment Results of Operations-CCUSA. ” 

was $170.8 million for the six months ended June 30,2007, an increase of $101.1 million, or 145.0%. The increase in interest expense was due 
to the issuance of the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes, the mortgage loans that remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities we 
acquired, and the term loans issued in 2007, offset by the repayment of the 2006 Credit Facility. See “MD&A-Segment Results of 
Operations-CCUSA, ’ I  

Benefit (provision) for income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30,2007 was a benefit of $15.6 million and $37.8 million, 
respectively, compared to a provision of ($0.5) million and ($ 1.1) million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively. The 
change from a provision to a benefit was related to our change from a net deferred tax asset position to a net deferred tax liability position that 
resulted from the deferred 

Interest expense was $88.8 million for the three months ended June 30,2007, an increase of $5 1.3 million, or 137.1%. Interest expense 
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tax liability of $572.7 million recorded as part of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price of the Global Signal Merger offset by the 
reversal of our federal valuation allowance of $286.1 million. See “ MD&A-Segment Results of Operations-CCUSA ”. 

In May 2007, CCAL (our 77.6% majority-owned subsidiary) issued a capital retum of approximately $166.0 million, including $37.2 
million to the minority shareholder of CCAL. Upon issuance of the capital return, we recorded a reduction in additional paid-in capital of $8.9 
million as a result of the capital return to the CCAL minority shareholders exceeding the carrying value of the minority interest in CCAL. The 
borrowing and related capital retum was issued to increase the leverage of the CCAL business. The losses applicable to the minority interest 
shareholders will be included in our results in the future as long as their share of the CCAL losses exceeds their equity interest. 

Segment Results of Operations 
Our reportable operating segments for the six months ended June 30, 2007 are (i) CCUSA, primarily consisting of our U.S. (including 

Puerto Rico) tower operations, (ii) CCAL, our Australian tower operations, and (iii) Emerging Businesses, our Modeo business. Our financial 
results are reported to management and the Board of Directors in this manner. We have reclassified the Corporate Office and Other segmcnt 
into the CCUSA segment reflecting the significance of the CCUSA segment to the consolidated business after the Global Signal Merger. 
Segment information for all periods has been reclassified to reflect this change in reportable segments. We also plan to discontinue reporting 
the Emerging Businesses, which is currently comprised of the Modeo business, as a reportable segment beginning in the third quarter of 2007. 
See ‘‘ MDbA-Management Overview-Spectrum Lease and Modeo Investment .” 

See note 14 to our consolidated financial statements for segment results and a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA 

Our measurement of profit or loss currently used to evaluate our operating performance and operating segments is earnings before 
interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted (“Adjusted EBITDA”). Our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be 
comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies, including companies in the tower sector, and is not a measure of performance 
calculated in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). 

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus restructuring charges (credits), asset write-down charges, integration costs, 
depreciation, amortization and accretion, losses on purchases and redemptions of debt, interest and other income (expense), interest expense 
and amortization of deferred financing costs, benefit (provision) for income taxes, minority interests, cumulative effect of a change in 
accounting principle, income (loss) from discontinued operations and stock-based compensation charges. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as 
an altemative measure of operating results or cash flow from operations as determined in accordance with GAAP, and Adjusted EBITDA may 
not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. Adjusted EBITDA is discussed further under ‘‘ MD&A-Accounting and 
Reporting Matters - Non-GAAP Financial Measures. ’’ 

CCUSA-Three Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 

2006. This increase in net revenues resulted from an increase in site rental revenues of $149.2 million, or 96.6%, for the same periods. For the 
three months ended June 30, 2007, the site rental revenues from the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger was $132.0 
million or approximately 88.5% of the increase in site rental revenues for the three months ended June 30,2007 from the three months ended 
June 30, 2006. The remaining increase in our site rental revenues of $17.2 million or 1 1.5% of the CCUSA segment was primarily driven by 
the following that occurred during or after the second quarter of 2006: (i) new tenant additions (or modifications to existing installations) and, 
to a lesser extent, (ii) the leases related to the 474 towers acquired from Mountain Union. 

Net revenues for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $145.1 million, or 81.9%, from the three months ended June 30, 
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Site rental gross margins for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $89.4 million, or 82.6%, from the three months ended 
June 30, 2006. The increase in the site rental gross margins was related to the previously mentioned 96.6% increase in site rental revenues 
primarily driven by the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger and, to a lesser extent, from new customer additions (or 
modifications to existing installations) and the 474 towers acquired from Mountain Union. Site rental gross margins as a percentage of site 
rental revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007 decreased by 5.0 percentage points from the three months ended June 30,2006 to 
65.0% primarily as a result of the less mature Global Signal towers that have lower revenues per tower and higher ground rent expense as a 
percentage of revenues than our existing towers. We believe the Global Signal towers have significant latent revenue and margin growth 
opportunities provided by potential future additional leasing of those towers. 

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $7.9 million, or 34.4%, from the three 
months ended June 30,2006 but decreased to 9.6% of net revenues from 13.0%. General and administrative expenses for the three months 
ended June 30, 2007 included stock-based compensation expenses of $5.8 million which represents an increase of $1.3 million from three 
months ended June 30,2006. The increase in stock-based compensation was priinarily due to an increase of 1.2 million shares of unvesled 
restricted common stock from June 30, 2006 to June 30,2007. As of January 1, 2006, nearly all of our restricted common stock had early 
vested in prior periods; but during the year ended December 31,2006 and the six months ended June 30,2007, there were no early vestings. 
The early vesting of our restricted common stock in the future may influence the timing of recognition of our stock-based compensation 
expense (see note 15 to our consolidated financial statements). The remainder of the increase in general and administrative expenses was 
primarily related to headcount additions and related employee costs as a result of the Global Signal Merger. We anticipate that general and 
administrative expenses will decrease as a percentage of net revenue due to certain cost savings that may result from the Global Signal Merger; 
however, there can be no assurance that these cost savings will be achieved. 

Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $79.6 million, or 81.8%, from the three months ended June 30, 
2006. Adjusted EBITDA was positively impacted by the same factors that drove the increase of 8 1.9% in our net revenues including the towers 
acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger and the new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations). 

Integration costs for the three months ended June 30,2007 were $5.1 million and were related to the Global Signal Merger and included, 
among other things, expenses for retention bonus obligations with employees of the former Global Signal of $1.4 million and stock-based 
compensation charges of $0.2 million with respect to restricted common stock assumed in the Global Signal Merger. 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $63.7 million, or 101.8%, from the three 
months ended June 30,2006. The increase for the three months ended June 30,2007 was primarily attributable to depreciation of property and 
equipment and amortization of intangible assets of $3 1 .O million and $30.9 million, respectively that were recorded in connection with the 
preliminary purchase price allocation for the Global Signal Merger. The depreciation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2007 on the 
towers acquired from Global Signal was inclusive of $2.8 million related to towers with original useful lives (as defined) less than one year. 
Depreciation on towers is computed using the useful life that is defined as the period equal to the shorter of 20 years or the term of the 
underlying ground lease (including renewal options). See “ MD&A-Accounting and Reporting Matters-Critical Accounting Policies and 
Estimates. ” 

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs for the three months ended June 30,2007 increased by $5 1.4 million, or 
140.2%, from the three months ended June 30, 2006. The increase for the three months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily attributable to 
additional indebtedness of approximately $3.0 billion from June 30, 2006 to June 30,2007. The components of the increase in indebtedness 
include (i) the issuance of the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes ($1.55 billion), (ii) the mortgage loans (S 1.8 billion) that remained outstanding as 
obligations of the Global Signal Entities we acquired, and (iii) the issuance of term loans ($650.0 million) during 2007. This additional 
indebtedness was offset by the repayment of the borrowings under the previously existing credit agreement dated as of June 1, 2006. For the 
three months ended June 30, 2007, interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs related to the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes and 
mortgage loans totaled $23.5 million and $26.6 million, respectively. We believe our recent financing transactions have simplified our capital 
structure at attractive rates while maintaining our targeted leverage ratios and have allowed us to make investments 
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that we believe exhibit sufficient potential to achieve acceptable risk-adjusted returns. See " MDbA-Liquidity and Capital Resources- 
Overview. '' 

Benefit (provision) for income taxes for the three months ended June 30,2007 was a benefit of $15.9 million compared to a provision of 
S(0.4) million for the three months ended June 30, 2006. We recorded a deferred tax liability of $572.7 million as part of the preliminary 
allocation of the purchase price of the Global Signal Merger offset by the reversal of our federal valuation allowance of $286.1 million. As a 
result, we (i) are no longer in a net deferred tax asset position, (ii) are no longer recording a valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets 
because of our historical net operating losses, and (iii) can record the benefit of tax impacts of our results in the statement of operations and 
comprehensive income (loss). 

Net income (loss) for the three months ended June 30,2007 was a loss of S33.1 million representing an increase of $21.4 million from the 
three months ended June 30, 2006 primarily due to (i) the results of the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger including 
$62.2 million of depreciation, amortization and accretion, (ii) increases in our interest expense related to additional debt, and (iii) the other 
previously mentioned items. 

C C U S A C k  Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 

This increase in net revenues resulted from an increase in site rental revenues of $283.8 million, or 93.2%, for the same periods. From the date 
of acquisition to June 30, 2007, the site rental revenues from the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger was $245.5 
million or approximately 86.5% of the increase in site rental revenues for the six months ended June 30,2007 from the six months ended 
June 30, 2006. The remaining increase in our site rental revenues of $38.3 million or 13.5% of the CCUSA segment was primarily driven by 
the following that occurred during or after the first quarter of 2006: (i) new tenant additions (or modifications to existing installations) and, to a 
lesser extent, (ii) the leases related to the 474 towers acquired from Mountain Union. 

Net revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $274.9 million, or 79.4%, from the six months ended June 30, 2006. 

Site rental gross margins for the six months ended June 30,2007 increased by $168.2 million, or 79.0%, from the six months ended 
June 30, 2006. The increase in the site rental gross margins was related to the previously mentioned 93.2% increase in site rental revenues 
primarily driven by the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger (from the date of acquisition) and, to a lesser extent, from 
new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations) and the 474 towers acquired from Mountain Union. Site rental gross margins 
as a percentage of site rental revenues for the six months ended June 30,2007 decreased by 5.1 percentage points from the six months ended 
June 30, 2006 to 64.8% primarily as a result of the less mature Global Signal towers that have lower revenues per tower and higher ground rent 
expense as a percentage of revenues than our existing towers. We believe the Global Signal towers have significant latent revenue and margin 
growth opportunities provided by potential future additional leasing of those towers. 

General and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $17.9 million, or 41.4%, from the six months 
ended June 30,2006 but decreased to 9.8% of net revenues from 12.5%. General and administrative expenses for the six months ended 
June 30, 2007 included stock-based compensation expenses of $9.7 million which represents an increase of $3.0 million from six months ended 
June 30, 2006. The increase in stock-based compensation was primarily due to an increase of 1.3 million shares of unvested restricted common 
stock from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2007. As of January 1, 2006, nearly all of our restricted common stock had early vested in prior periods; 
but during the year ended December 31,2006 and the six months ended June 30, 2007, there were no early vestings. The early vesting of our 
restricted common stock in the future may influence the timing of recognition of our stock-based compensation expense (see note 15 to our 
consolidated financial statements). The remainder of the increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily related to headcount 
additions and related employee costs as a result of the Global Signal Merger. We anticipate that general and administrative expenses will 
decrease as a percentage of net revenue due to certain cost savings that may result from the Global Signal Merger; however, there can be no 
assurance that these cost savings will be achieved. 

Adjusted EBITDA for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $147.2 million, or 77.4%, from the six months ended June 30, 
2006. Adjusted EBITDA was positively impacted by the same factors that drove the 
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increase of 79.4% in our net revenues including the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger (from January 12, 2007 to 
June 30, 2007) and the new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations). 

Integration costs for the six months ended June 30, 2007 were $13.9 million and were related to the Global Signal Merger and included, 
among other things, expenses for retention bonus obligations with employees of the former Global Signal of $7.3 million and stock-based 
compensation charges of $0.8 million with respect to restricted common stock assumed in the Global Signal Merger. 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased by S130.3 million, or 101.6%, from the six 
months ended June 30, 2006. The increase for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily attributable to depreciation of property and 
equipment and amortization of intangible assets of S72.9 million and $57.1 million, respectively, from the date of acquisition to June 30, 2007 
recorded in connection with the preliminary purchase price allocation for the Global Signal Merger. The depreciation expense on the towers 
acquired from Global Signal was inclusive of $17.5 million related to towers with useful lives (as defined) less than one year. Depreciation on 
towers is computed using the useful life that is defined as the period equal to the shorter of 20 years or the term of the undcrlying ground lease 
(including renewal options). See '' MDbA-Accounting and Reporting Mailers-Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates. " 

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs for the six months ended June 30,2007 increased by $101.2 million, or 
148.7%, from the six months ended June 30,2006. The increase for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily attributable to additional 
indebtedness of approximately $3.0 billion from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2007. The components of the increase in indebtedness include (i) the 
issuance of the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes ($1.55 billion), (ii) the mortgage loans ($1.8 billion) that remained outstanding as obligations of the 
Global Signal Entities we acquired, and (iii) the issuance of term loans ($650.0 million) during 2007. This additional indebtedness was offset 
by the repayment of the borrowings under the previously existing credit agreement dated as of June 1,2006. For the six months ended June 30, 
2007, intercst expense and amortization of deferred financing costs related to the 2006 Tower Revenue Notes and mortgage loans totaled $47.1 
million and $50.0 million, respectively. We believe our recent financing transactions have simplified our capital structure at attractive rates 
while maintaining our targeted leverage ratios and have allowed us to make investments that we believe exhibit sufficient potential to achieve 
acceptable risk-adjusted returns. See " MDBA-Liquidity and Capital Resources-Overview. " 

Benefit (provision) for income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was a benefit of $38.1 million compared to a provision of 
$(0.9) million for the six months ended June 30, 2006. We recorded a deferred tax liability of $572.7 million as part of the preliminary 
allocation of the purchase price of the Global Signal Merger offset by the reversal of our federal valuation allowance of $286.1 million. As a 
result, we (i) are no longer in a net deferred tax asset position, (ii) are no longer recording a valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets 
because of our historical net operating losses, and (iii) can record the benefit of tax impacts of our results in the statement of operations and 
comprehensive income (loss). 

Net income (loss) for the six months ended June 30,2007 was a loss of $75.2 million representing an increase of $60.2 million from the 
six months ended June 30, 2006 primarily due to (i) the results of the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger including 
$130.4 million of depreciation, amortization and accretion, (ii) increases in our interest expense related to additional debt, and (iii) the other 
previously mentioned items. 

CCAL-Three Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 

2006. The increase in total net revenues was primarily due to growth in site revenues from new customer additions (or modifications to existing 
installations) on our towers, exchange rate fluctuations and contractual escalations on existing leases with variable escalations. Included in our 
site rental revenues is a contractual payment of $2.1 million and $2.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2007, 
respectively, related to a fee for the shortfall in a contractually committed number of site licenses. 

Total net revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $4.0 million, or 23.9%, from the three months ended June 30, 

Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $2.7 million, or 30.7%, from the three months ended June 30, 
2006. Adjusted EBITDA was positively impacted by the incremental margin from the 
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new customer additions (or modifications to existing installations) on existing towers and contractual escalations on existing leases with 
variable escalations. Site rental gross margins increased by $3.0 million, or 28.5%, to 72.2% of site rental revenues, for the three months ended 
June 30, 2007, from $10.5 million, or 71.5% of site rental revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2006. 

Net income (loss) for the three months ended June 30,2007 was income of $2.7 million an improvement of $1.6 million, or 153.0% from 
the three months ended June 30,2006. The improvement in net income was primarily driven by the same factors that drove the improvement in 
Adjusted EBITDA partially offset by the minority interest shareholder’s 22.4% portion of the results. See “ MDcQA-Consolidated Results of 
Operations-Comparison of Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007” for a discussion of the minority interest. 

The increases and decreases between the three months ended June 30,2007 and the three months ended June 30,2006 were inclusive of 
exchange rate fluctuations. Changes between the two periods were influenced by the average exchange rates for the three months ended 
June 30, 2006 and 2007 of 0.747 and 0.832, respectively. See “ Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. ” 

CCAL-SL Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 

The increase in total net revenues was primarily due to growth in site revenues from new customer additions (or modifications to existing 
installations) on our towers, exchange rate fluctuations and contractual escalations on existing leases with variable escalations. Included in our 
site rental revenues is a contractual payment of $2.1 million and $2.4 million for the six months ended June 30,2006 and June 30, 2007, 
respectively, related to a fee for the shortfall in a contractually committed number of site licenses. 

Total net revenues for the six months ended June 30,2007 increased by $7.2 million, or 24.0%, from the six months ended June 30,2006. 

Adjusted EBITDA for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased by $5.8 million, or 40.4%, from the six months ended June 30, 
2006. Adjusted EBITDA was positively impacted by the incremental margin from the new customer additions (or modifications to existing 
installations) on existing towers and contractual escalations on existing leases with variable escalations. Site rental gross margins increased by 
S5.7 million, or 31.3%, to 70.6% of site rental revenues for the six months ended June 30,2007, from $18.1 million, or 68.6% of site rental 
revenues for the six months ended June 30. 2006. 

Net income (loss) for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was income of $3.1 million an improvement of $3.9 million from the six 
months ended June 30,2006. The change from net loss to net income was primarily driven by the same factors that drove the improvement in 
Adjusted EBITDA partially offset by the minority interest shareholder’s 22.4% portion of the results. See ‘‘ MDcQA-Consolidated Results of 
Operations-Comparison of Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007” for a discussion of the minority interest. 

The increases and decreases between the six months ended June 30,2007 and the six months ended June 30, 2006 were inclusive of 
exchange rate fluctuations. Changes between the two periods were influenced by the average exchange rates for the six months ended June 30, 
2006 and 2007 of 0.743 and 0.809, respectively. See “ Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. ” 

Emerging Businesses - Three Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 
For the three months ended June 30, 2007, the net loss of $2.3 million decreased by $0.3 million from the three months ended June 30, 

2006. For the three months ended June 30,2006 and 2007, Adjusted EBITDA was $(2.3) million and S(2.0) million, respectively. The net loss 
and Adjusted EBITDA consisted of the operating costs of Modeo, primarily payroll and related employee costs. See “MDbA-Management 
Overview-Spectrum Lease and Modeo Investment. ’’ 
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Emerging Businesses -Six Months Ended June 30,2006 and 2007 

For the six months ended June 30,2006 and 2007, Adjusted EBITDA was S(3.7) million and $(3.8) million, respectively. The net loss and 
Adjusted EBITDA consisted of the operating costs of Modeo, primarily payroll and related employee costs. The net loss was impacted by a 
decrease in stock-based compensation charges of $0.9 million from the six months ended June 30,2007 to the six months ended June 30, 2006. 
See “MDbA-Management Overview-Spectrum Lease and Modeo Investment. I ’  

For the six months endcd June 30,2007, the net loss of $3.6 million decreased by S0.7 million from the six months ended June 30, 2006. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Overview 

achieve acceptable risk-adjusted retums or exhibit potcntial to complement our core tower rental business. As such, we expect to continue: 
Strategv. We seek to allocate our available capital among the investment alternatives that we believe exhibit sufficient potential to 

(1) 

(2) 
(3) 

to acquire or build new towers, extend leaseholds on the land on which our towers are located, acquire the land on which our towers 
are located and make improvements to existing towers, 

to opportunistically purchase our own common stock or preferred stock from time to time, and 
to a lesser extent, make investments in adjacent businesses that we believe are complementary to our core tower leasing business 
when the cxpcctcd returns from such investments meet our investment return criteria. 

Our goal is to maximize long-term net cash flow from operating activities and fund all non-discretionary capital spending and debt 
service from our operating cash flow, without reliance on additional borrowing or the use of our preexisting cash. However, due to risk factors 
(see “Part II-Other Information-Item IA .  Risk Factors” and “Item IA.  Risk Factors I ’  in our 2006 Form 10-K), there can be no assurance 
that this will be possible. As part of our strategy to achieve increases in net cash flow from operating activities, in addition to improving 
operating results, we have lowered interest rates on our debt through attractive refinancing opportunities. We may also incur additional 
indebtedness on a discretionary basis to fund discretionary investments. 

Our long-term business strategy contemplates discretionary capital expenditures in connection with the further improvement and selective 
expansion of our existing tower portfolios. We expect that the majority of our discretionary investments will occur in connection with strategic 
tower acquisitions like the Global Signal Merger, purchases of our common or preferred stock, purchases of land under our towers, 
modifications and reinforcements of our existing towers for new customer additions, selected new tower builds and, to a lesser extent, 
investments in adjacent businesses. We may incur additional indebtedness on a discretionary basis to fund these investments. Our long-term 
business strategy may be influenced over the near term as a result of the debt and equity financing of the Global Signal Merger and the related 
commitment of time and expense to the execution of the integration of Global Signal’s business. 

Liquidity Position . As of June 30, 2007, we had consolidated cash and cash equivalents of $92.4 million (exclusive of restricted cash of 
$15 1.6 million), consolidated long-term and short-term debt of $6.0 billion, consolidated redeemable preferred stock of $3 13.3 million and 
consolidated stockholders equity of $3.5 billion. We currently have $250.0 million of available borrowings under the 2007 Revolver. 
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Net Cash from Operations 
A summary of our net cash provided by operating activities (from our consolidated statement of cash flows) is as follows: 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

2006 2007 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $1 18,372 $1 18,738 

The net cash provided by operating activities increased by $0.4 million, or 0.3%, from the six months ended June 30, 2006 due primarily 
to the cash flow generated by the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger and the growth in our core site rental leasing, 
offset by an increase in cash interest paid of $89.3 million, payments for merger-related fees incurred by Global Signal of approximately $16.3 
million, prepayments of long-term easements for land under our towers of $13.7 million and integration costs related to the Global Signal 
Merger of $13.1 million. Changes in working capital, and particularly changes in deferred rental revenues, prepaid ground leases and accrued 
interest, can have a dramatic impact on our net cash from operating activities for interim periods largely due to the timing of payments. 

Investing Activities 
Capital Expendilures. Our capital expenditures can be separated into two general categories: 

(1) 

( 2 )  

sustaining (which includes maintenance activities on our towers, vehicles, information technology equipment and office 
equipment), and 

revenue generating (which includes purchases of land under our towers, tower improvements in order to support additional leasing, 
the construction of new towers, investments in adjacent businesses and the construction of distributed antenna systems (“DAS 
Sites”)). 

A summary of our capital expenditures (including the total capital expenditures which can be found on our consolidated statement of cash 
flows) is as follows: 

Six Months Ended June 30, 
Sustaining Capital Revenue Generating Total Capital 

Expenditures Capital Expenditures Expenditures ------ 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 
(In thousands of dollars) 

CCUSA 
CCAL 
Emerging Businesses 
Consolidated 

$3,603 $8,603 $29,233 $ 98,772 $32,836 $107,375 
576 861 1,083 10,974 1,659 11,835 
45 51 14,734 5,664 14,779 5,715 

$4,224 $9,5 15 $45,050 $1 15,4 10 $49,274 $124,925 
------ ------ 

For the six months ended June 30, 2007, total capital expenditures increased $75.7 million, or 153.5%, from the six months ended 
June 30, 2006. The increase in sustaining capital expenditures was primarily related to the towers acquired in connection with the Global Signal 
Merger. The net increase in revenue generating capital expenditures was primarily related to a $53.0 million increase in purchases of land 
under our towers comprised of $52.3 million and $0.7 million by CCUSA and CCAL, respectively, as a result of execution and expansion of 
our Portfolio Extension Program related to (i) our existing towers and (ii) those acquired in connection with the Global Signal Merger. 

the construction of new towers, investments in emerging businesses and the construction of DAS Sites are discretionary and depend upon 
expectations of achieving acceptable risk-adjusted retums (given current market conditions). Such decisions are influenced by the availability 
of capital and expected 

Our decisions regarding revenue generating capital expenditures such as the purchases of land under our towers, enhancement of towers, 
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returns on alternative investments. See also “MD&A-Management Overview-Spectrum Lease and Modeo Investment” for a discussion 
regarding the Modeo business. 

Acquisition of Global Signal. We completed the Global Signal Merger on January 12,2007 in a stock and cash transaction valued at 
approximately $4.0 billion, exclusive of debt of approximately $ 1.8 billion that remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal 
Entities we acquired. See “MD&A-Management Overview-Acquisition of Global Signal” and notes 3 and 5 to our consolidated financial 
statements. 

Mountain Union. On January 2, 2007, we purchased the remaining approximately 2% minority interest in Mountain Union for $4.8 
million. See note 5 to our consolidated financial statements. 

Financing Activities 

million, respectively. The net cash provided by (used for) financing activities in 2007 was exclusive of the approximate $1.8 billion of debt that 
remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities we acquired. The following is a summary of the significant financing 
transactions completed in 2007 including the debt that remained outstanding as obligations of the Global Signal Entities we acquired. 

2006 Mortgage Loan. At the closing of the Global Signal Merger, the 2006 Mortgage Loan, comprised of borrowings under a mortgage 
loan totaling $1.55 billion, remained outstanding as obligations of certain of the Global Signal Entities we acquired. The 2006 Mortgage Loan 
has a weighted average fixed interest rate of approximately 5.69%, and 92.1% was rated investment grade. We recorded a fair value adjustment 
of $3.1 million to decrease the value of the 2006 Mortgage Loan to fair value as part of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price of the 
Global Signal Merger. The effective interest rate after giving effect to the fair value purchase price adjustment is approxiinately 5.74%. See 
note 6 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding the 2006 Mortgage Loan. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, our net cash provided by (uscd for) financing activities was $382.4 inillion and $(8.1) 

2004 Mortgage Loan. At the closing of the Global Signal Merger, the 2004 Mortgage Loan, comprised of borrowings under a mortgage 
loan totaling $293.8 million, remained outstanding as obligations of certain of the Global Signal Entities we acquired. The 2004 Mortgage 
Loan has a weighted average fixed interest rate of approximately 4.74%, and 86.7% was rated investment grade. We recorded a fair value 
adjustment of $9.1 million to decrease the value of the 2004 Mortgage Loan to fair value as part of the preliminary allocation of the purchase 
price of  the Global Signal Merger. The effective interest rate after giving effect to the fair value purchase price adjustment is approximately 
5.78%. See note 6 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding the 2004 Mortgage Loan, 

respectively. In January 2007, our purchase of 17.7 million shares of our common stock was primarily funded with $600.0 million of the 
proceeds from the term loans (see ‘’ MD&A-Liquidity and Capital Resources-Purchases and Investments ”). Borrowings under the term 
loans currently bear interest equal to LIBOR plus 1 SO%. 

2007 Credit Facility. In January and March 2007, CCOC entered into two term loans due in 2014 for $600.0 million and $50.0 million, 

In January 2007, CCOC entered into a currently undrawn revolving credit facility for $250.0 million that matures in January 2008. 
Availability of the revolving credit facility at any time will be determined by certain financial ratios. CCIC has guaranteed CCOC’s revolving 
credit facility and the two term loans. We may use the remaining $50.0 million borrowed under the term loans and the availability under the 
revolving credit facility for general corporate purposes which may include financing of capital expenditures, acquisitions, and purchases of our 
common or preferred stock. See note 6 to our consolidated financial statements. 
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Common Stock Activity. A summary of common stock activity for the six months ended June 30,2007 is as follows: 

Shares outstanding at beginning of period 
Shares issued in the Global Signal Merger 
Restricted stock awards granted 
Restricted stock awards assumed in the Global Signal Merger 
Common stock purchased 
Stock options exercised 
Other activity 
Shares outstanding at end of period 

Six ,Months Ended 
June 30,2007 

(In thousands of shares) 
202,08 1 

98,049 
1,294 

92 
( 1 7,7 1 4) 

698 
136 

284,636 

On January 12, 2007, we issued approximately 98.1 million shares of common stock in the Global Signal Merger. See “ MD&A- 
Management Overview-Acquisition of Global Signal. ” See note 15 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the restricted 
stock granted during the six months ended June 30,2007. On January 19, 2007, we purchased an aggregate of 17.7 million shares of our 
common stock from the Global Signal Significant Stockholders. We paid $600.3 million in cash or approximately $33.89 per share to effect 
these purchases. See ‘‘ MD&A-Management Overview-Purchases and Investments. I’ 

Interest Rate Swaps. We have used, and may continue to use when we deem prudent, interest rate swap agreements to manage and reduce 
our interest rate risk. See ‘‘ Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk ” and note 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

CCAL Capital Return. See ‘‘ MDbA-Consolidated Results of Operations-Comparison of Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 
and 2007” for a discussion of the minority interest and CCAL capital return. 

Financing Restrictions. Our debt obligations contain certain financial covenants with which CCIC or our subsidiaries must maintain 
compliance in order to avoid the imposition of certain restrictions. As of and for the six months ended June 30,2007, the Company and its 
subsidiaries had no financial covenant violations. Various of our debt obligations also place other restrictions on the ability of CCIC or our 
subsidiaries, including the ability to incur debt and liens, purchase our securities, make capital expenditures, dispose of assets, undertake 
transactions with affiliates, make other investments and pay dividends. 

Factors Affecting Sources of Liquidity 
The factors that are likely to determine our subsidiaries’ ability to comply with their current and future debt covenants are: 

(1) financial performance, 
(2) levels of indebtedness, and 

(3) debt service requirements. 

The primary risk of a debt covenant violation would result from a deterioration of a subsidiary’s financial performance. Should a 
covenant violation occur in the future as a result of a shortfall in financial performance (or for any other reason), we might be required to make 
principal payments earlier than currently scheduled and may not have access to additional borrowings under these facilities as long as the 
covenant violation continues. Any such early principal payments would have to be made from our existing cash balances or cash from 
operations. 

As a holding company, CCIC will require distributions or dividends from our subsidiaries or will be forced to use our remaining cash 
balances to fund the holding company’s debt obligations (including the 4% convertible senior notes and the guarantees of the credit facility and 
the term loans entered into during 2007) including interest payments on the notes. The terms of our subsidiaries’ current indebtedness generally 
allow the ability to distribute 
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cash to CCIC unless they experience a deterioration of financial performance. In addition, there can be no assurance that our subsidiaries will 
generate sufficient cash from their operations to make any permitted distributions pursuant to our current or future indebtedness. As a result, we 
could be required to apply a portion of our remaining cash to fund interest payments on the notes. If we do not retain sufficient funds or raise 
additional funds from any future financing, we may not be able to make our interest payments on the notes. 

Our ability to make scheduled payments of principal of, or to pay interest on, our debt obligations and our ability to refinance any such 
debt obligations will depend on our future performance which, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, 
legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control (see “Item IA. Risk Factors” in our 2006 Form 10-K). 

Accounting and Reporting Matters 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

and results of operations and (ii) require our most difficult, subjective or coinplcx judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates 
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Our critical accounting policies and estimates as of December 3 1,  2006 are described in 
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ” and in the notes to our consolidated 
financial statements in our 2006 Form 10-K. Other than those discussed below, the critical accounting policies and estimates in place for the 
year ended December 3 1,2006 have not significantly changed from the critical accounting policies for the six months ended June 30, 2007. 

Our critical accounting policics and estimates arc those that wc believc (i) are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition 

Accounting for  Long-Lived Assets, We allocate the purchase price of acquisitions to the assets and liabilities assumed based on their 
estimated fair value at the date of acquisition. Any purchase price in excess of the net fair value of the assets and liabilities assumed is allocated 
to goodwill. For significant acquisitions, we use a third-party valuation specialist to estimate the fair value of certain assets and liabilities 
including estimates of replacement costs of our tangible fixed assets, such as towers, and discounted cash flow valuation methods for 
estimating identifiable intangibles, such as site rental contracts and above and below market leases. The purchase price allocation and related 
valuations require subjective estimates that if incorrectly estimated could be material to our consolidated financials statements including the 
amount of depreciation, amortization and accretion expense. The determination of the final purchase price allocation could extend over several 
quarters resulting in the use of preliminary valuations that are subject to adjustment until finalized. 

We are required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives of our tangible and intangible assets for purposes of detennining 
depreciation, amortization and accretion expense that if incorrectly estimated could be material to our consolidated financial statements, 
Depreciation expense for our property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of our various 
classes of tangible assets. The substantial portion of our property and equipment represents the cost of our towers which is depreciated with an 
estimated useful life equal to the shorter of 20 years or the term of the lease (including optional renewals) for the land under the tower, The 
useful life of our intangible assets are estimated based on the period for which the intangible asset will benefit us. 

We review the carrying values of property and equipment, intangible assets and other long-lived assets for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If the sum of the estimated future cash flows 
(undiscounted) from the asset is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Measurement of an impairment loss is based 
on the fair value of the asset. Our determination that an adverse event or change in circumstance has occurred will generally involve (i) a 
deterioration in an asset’s financial performance compared to historical results, (ii) a shortfall in an asset’s financial performance compared to 
forecasted results, or (iii) a change in strategy affecting the utility of the asset. Our measurement of the fair value of an impaired asset will 
generally be based on an estimate of discounted future cash flows. 

We test goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter regardless of whether adverse events or changes in 
circumstances have occurred. This annual impairment test involves (i) a step to identify potential impairment at a reporting unit level based on 
fair values and (ii) a step to measure the amount of the 
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impairment, if any. Our measurement of the fair value for goodwill is based on an estimate of discounted future cash flows of the reporting 
unit. The most important estimates for such calculations are the expected additions of new tenants on our towers, the terminal multiple for our 
projected cash flows and our weighted average cost of capital. 

Future declines in our site leasing business could result in an impairment of goodwill, property and equipment or intangible assets in the 
future, If impairment were to occur in the future, the calculations to measure the impairment could result in the write-off of some portion, to 
substantially all, of our goodwill, property and equipment or intangible assets. 

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

2007. The adoption of FIN 48 resulted in a decrease in accumulated deficit and a decrease in contingent tax liabilities through a cumulative 
effect adjustment of $4.7 million. See notes 2 and 10 to our consolidated financial statements. 

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48 which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157 which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and 
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective in the beginning of our 2008 fiscal year. We believe the adoption of 
SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

See note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion of recently issued accounting standards and the related impact 
on our consolidated financial statements. 

Non-GAAP Financial Measures 
One measurement of profit or loss currently used to evaluate our operating performance and operating segments is earnings before 

interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted, or Adjusted EBITDA. Our definition of Adjusted EBITDA is set forth in “ 
MD&A-Results of Operations-Segment Results. ” Our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of 
other companies, including companies in the tower sector, and is not a measure of performance calculated in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted 
EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for operating income or loss, net income or loss, cash flows provided by (used 
for) operating, investing and financing activities or other income statement or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

We believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance because: 
it is the primary measure used by our management to evaluate the economic productivity of our operations including the efficiency 
of our employees and the profitability associated with their performance, the realization of contract revenues under our long-term 
contracts, our ability to obtain and maintain our customers and our ability to operate our leasing and licensing business effectively; 
i t  is the primary measure of profit and loss used by our management for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to, 
and assessing the performance of, our operating segments; 
it is similar to the measure of current financial performance generally used in our debt covenant calculations; 
although specific definitions may vary, it is widely used in the wireless tower sector to measure operating performance without 
regard to items such as depreciation, amortization and accretion which can vary depending upon accounting methods and the book 
value of assets; and 
we believe it helps investors meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period by removing the 
impact of our capital structure (primarily interest charges from our outstanding debt) and asset base (primarily depreciation, 
amortization and accretion) from our operating results. 
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Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA: 
with respect to compliance with our debt covenants which require us to maintain certain financial ratios including, or similar to, 
Adjusted EBITDA; 
as the primary measure of profit and loss for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to, and assessing the 
performance of, our operating segments; 
as a measurement of operating performance because it assists us in comparing our operating performance on a consistent basis as i t  
removes the impact of our capital structure (primarily interest charges from our outstanding debt) and asset base (primarily 
depreciation, amortization and accretion) from our operating results; 

in presentations to our Board of Directors to enable i t  to have the same measurement of operating performance used by 
management; 
for planning purposes including preparation of our annual operating budget; and 
as a valuation measure in strategic analyses in connection with the purchase and sale of assets. 

There are material limitations to using a measure such as Adjusted EBITDA including the difficulty associated with comparing results 
among more than one company and the inability to analyze certain significant items, including depreciation and interest expense, that directly 
affect our net income or loss. Management compensates for these limitations by considering the economic effect of the excluded expense items 
independently as well as in connection with their analysis of net income (loss). 

The definition of Adjusted EBITDA used by Global Signal prior to the Global Signal Merger is different from ours as Global Signal 
excluded the impacts of non-cash straight-lined revenues and expenses in calculation of Adjusted EBITDA. Upon completion of the Global 
Signal Merger, the Global Signal Entities applied our definition of Adjusted EBITDA. 

ITEM 3. 
As a result of our international operating, investing and financing activities, we are exposed to market risks, which include changes in 

interest rates, equity security prices and foreign currency exchange rates, which may adversely affect our results of operations and financial 
position. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Interest Rate Risk 

majority of our financial instruments, however, are long-term fixed interest rate instruments. As of June 30, 2007, we had $650.0 million of 
floating rate indebtedness, or approximately 10.8% of total debt. As a result, a hypothetical unfavorable fluctuation in market interest rates of 
one percentage point over a twelve month period would increase our interest expense by approximately $6.5 million. 

Certain of the financial instruments we have used to obtain capital are subject to market risks for fluctuations in market interest rates. The 

We have used interest rate swaps to manage and reduce our interest rate risk including the use of forward starting interest rate swaps to 
hedge the variability of future interest rates on anticipated financings. The forward starting interest rate swaps call for us to pay interest at a 
fixed rate in exchange for receiving interest at a variable rate equal to LIBOR. The forward starting interest rate swaps are exclusive of any 
applicable margin that would be incremental to the interest rate of the anticipated financings. During the three months ended March 3 1, 2007, 
we entered into forward starting interest rate swaps that have effectively locked in the interest rate on the rollover of (i) the $1.55 billion 2006 
Mortgage Loan to February 2016 and (ii) the $293.8 million 2004 Mortgage Loan to December 2014. See note 6 to our consolidated financial 
statements and the tables below. 
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The following tables provide information about our market risk related to changes in interest rates. The forward starting interest rate 
swaps, future minimum principal payment obligations and weighted-average coupon rates on our existing long-term debt are~presented as of 
June 30.2007. 

Future Minimum Principal Payment Obligations by Expected Year of Maturity 
Interest 

Outstanding 
Rate Balance 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter 

(In thousands of  dollars) 
Fixed rate debt: 

2006 Mortgage Loan 
2004 Mortgage Loan 
2006 Tower Revenue Notes (a) 

2005 Tower Revenue Notes (a) 

4% Convertible Senior Notes 
7.5% Senior Notes 

Total fixed rate debt 
Variable rate debt: 

@) 

Total debt 

2007 Credit Facility - Term Loan A and B 

5.69% $1,550,000 S - $ - $ -  $1,550,000 $ - S - 
- - - 4.74% 293,825 - 293,825 - 

4.89% 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 - - - 
4.00% 63,839 - - 63,839 - - - 

51 7.50% 
5.34% $5,357,715 $ - $293,825 $1,963,839 $3,100,000 $ - $ 51 

- 1,550,000 - - - 5.71% 1,550,000 - 

- - - - 51 = - -- 
-- -- -- 

6.84% $ 650,000 $6,500 $ 6,500 $ 6,500 $ 6,500 $6,500 $612,625 
5.50% $6,007,715 $6,500 $300,325 $1,970,339 $3,106,500 $6,500 $612,676 

-- 
-- -- 

(a) 
(b) 

Notes are presented assuming payment in full is expected to occur on the Anticipated Repayment Date. 
The interest rate represents the rate currently in effect. The interest rate reprices every three to six months. See note 6 to our consolidated 
financial statements. 

Fair Value at 

Forward Starting Interest Rate Swaps Notional June 30, 2007 
Combined 

(In thousands of dollars) 
Variable to fixed: 

March 2006 Interest Rate Swaps $1,900,000 $ 36,071 
December 2006 Interest Rate Swaps 1,550,000 34,752 
$1.55 Billion 2007 Interest Rate Swaps 1,550,000 26,5 15 

Total $5,293,825 S 103,085 
$294 Million 2007 Interest Rate Swaps 293,825 5,747 

Pay Fixed 
Forward Start Receive 

Date Forward End Date Rate Variable Rate 

June 20 10 June 20 15 5.18% LIBOR 
November 2011 November 2016 5.14% LIBOR 
February 201 1 February 2016 5.26% LIBOR 

December 2009 December 20 14 5.13% LIBOR 

Equity Security Price Risk 
We are exposed to price fluctuations on our available-for-sale investment in FiberTower equity securities. We do not currently attempt to 

reduce or eliminate the market exposure on these securities. As of June 30,2007, a 40% hypothetical adverse change in the equity price would 
result in an approximate $45.6 million decrease in the fair value of our available-for-sale equity investments with an offsetting adjustment to 
accumulated other comprehensive income and deferred tax liability, subject to the required evaluation of impairment charges relating to a 
decline in a value that is determined to be other than temporary. 

Foreign Currency Risk 
The vast majority of our foreign currency transactions are denominated in the Australian dollar, which is the functional currency of 

CCAL. As a result of CCAL’s transactions being denominated and settled in such functional currency, the risks associated with currency 
fluctuations are primarily associated with foreign currency translation adjustments. We do not currently hedge against foreign currency 
translation risks. We do not currently believe our financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies expose us to material foreign 
currency exchange risk based on the estimated impact of a hypothetical 15% unfavorable change in currency exchange rates. As of June 30, 
2007, the Company had approximately $1 7.6 million in cash and cash equivalents dominated in Australian dollars. The intercompany revolving 
credit facility denominated in Australian dollars is deemed a long-term investment and is considered part of the net investment, accordingly, 
related gains and losses are reported as translation adjustments. See ‘‘ MD&A-Consolidated Results of Operations-Comparison of Three and 
Six Monlhs EndedJzrne 30, 2006 and 2007’’ for a discussion of the related capital return. 
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

The Company conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the 
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as 
of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded 
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in alerting them in a timely manner to material information relating to the 
Company required to be included in the Company’s periodic reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

quarter covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s intemal control over 
financial reporting. 

Other than as set forth below, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal 

The Company completed the Global Signal Merger on January 12,2007. The assets, revenues and results of operations of Global Signal 
are material to the Company’s financial position, cash flows and results of operations; and the Company is in the process of integrating Global 
Signal’s operations into our internal control structure. As of December 31,2005, Global Signal concluded that their system of intemal control 
over financial reporting was not effective. Global Signal had control deficiencies that they concluded were material weaknesses in both the 
design and operating effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting including the lack of adequate control over the accuracy of 
automated computations related to accounting for non-cash aspects of customer and ground leases and the data used in these computations. 
Based on (i) the results of the financial statement audit of Global Signal performed by Global Signal’s external auditors as of and for the year 
ended December 3 1, 2006 and (ii) discussions with the former Global Signal management, these material weaknesses were not remediated 
during 2006. The Company is diligently pursuing remediation of these material weaknesses during the integration of the Global Signal business 
during 2007. There can be no assurances that the Company will be able to remediate these material weaknesses. 
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PART 11-OTHER INFORMATION 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

The information set forth above under note 12 in the consolidated financial statements in “Part I-Financial Information, Item I- 
Financial Statements ” is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 

discussed below. 
There are no material changes to the risk factors discussed in “Part I ,  Item IA.  Risk Factors” in our 2006 Form 10-K other than those 

Included in our 2006 Form 10-K was the risk factor entitled “ Modeo s Business Has Certain Risk Factors Different From Our Core 
Tower Business, Including an Unproven Business Model - Modeo s business may fail to operate sitccessfully and produce results that are less 
than anticipated. ” In conjunction with the lease of our Spectrum and transfer of our trial network in New York City on July 23, 2007, this risk 
factor related to Modeo has been replaced with the following risk factor: 

Our lease relating to our Spectrum has certain risk factors different from our core tower business, including that the Spectrum lease 
may not be renewed or continued, that the option to acquire the Spectrum license may not be exercised, and that the Spectrum may not be 
deployed - As a result of such risk factors, the revenues derived from the Spectrum may be substantially less than those that may otherwise 
have been anticipated. 

Our Spectrum lease has an initial term for a $13 million annual lease fec beginning July 23, 2007 until October 1, 2013. Upon thc 
expiration of the initial term of the lease, the lessee will have the right to acquire the Spectrum for $130 million (with a consumer price index 
adjustment from July 2007) or to renew the lease for a period of up to ten years on the same terms, subject to the annual lease fee increasing to 
$14.3 million. The lessee’s right to renew the lease or acquire the Spectrum following the initial term is subject to FCC license renewal and 
approval, which may not be obtained. In the event that the lessee defaults on the Spectrum lease, that the option to acquire the Spectrum license 
or renew the Spectrum lease is not exercised, or that the Spectrum is not deployed, the revenues derived from the Spectrum may be 
substantially less than those that may otherwise have been anticipated. 

ITEM 2. 
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities 

On April 3,2007, the Company issued 153,874 shares of common stock to a holder of stock warrants upon the cashless exercise of 
warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $7.508 per share. The Company issued the shares in reliance upon 
exemptions from registration pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including Section 3(a)(9) and Section 4(2) therein. 

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 

On April 30,2007, the Company issued 600 shares of common stock to a holder that exercised stock warrants at an exercise price of 
S7.508 per share. The Company issued the shares in reliance upon exemptions from registration pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, including Section 4(2) therein. 

ITEM 4. 
The annual meeting of the stockholders of the Company was held on May 24, 2007, at which meeting the stockholders voted to (1) elect 

Edward C. Hutcheson, Jr., J. Landis Martin and W. Benjamin Moreland as Class 111 directors, (2) approve an amendment to the Company’s 
2004 Stock Incentive Plan to increase by 3,000,000 shares the number of shares of common stock authorized for the issuance of awards under 
the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, (3) approve the amendment and restatement of the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as 
amended 

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
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(“Charter”) and (4) ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accountants for fiscal year 2007 
The voting results for each proposal submitted to a vote is as listed below. 

Election of Class I1 Directors 
Edward C. Hutcheson, Jr. - 163,725,890 votes for and 105,836,149 votes withheld. 
J. Landis Martin - 266,037,825 votes for and 3,524,214 votes withheld. 
W. Benjamin Moreland - 255,232,587 votes for and 14,329,452 votes withheld. 

The other directors whose term of office as a director continued after the meeting are: Dale N. Hatfield, Lee W. Hogan, Robert F. 
McKenzie and Robert H. Niehaus as Class I directors; and Wesley R. Edens, Ari Q. Fitzgerald, Robert E. Garrison I1 and John P. Kelly as 
Class I1 directors. Mr. Edens resigned as a director effective July 12,2007. 

Amendment to 2004 Stock Incentive Plan 
217,288,054 votes for, 30,725,186 votes against and 157,527 votes abstaining. 

Amendment and Restatement of the Charter 
240,719,759 votes for, 7,242,921 votes against and 208,086 votes abstaining. 

Ratification of Appointment of KPMG LLP as Independent Registered Public Accountants for Fiscal Year 2007 
263,600,412 votes for, 5,820,005 votes against and 141,622 votes abstaining. 

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 

Exhibit No. Description 
(a) 3.1 

(a) 3.2 

(a) 10.1 

(b) 10.2 

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Crown Castle Intemational Corp., dated May 24,2007 

Amended and Restated By-laws of Crown Castle Intemational Corp., dated May 24, 2007 

2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended 

Underwriting Agreement dated June 28, 2007, among Crown Castle International Corp., Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, 
Allen & Company LLC and Banc of America LLC, as representatives for the underwriters, and Fortress Registered 
Investment Trust, FRIT Holdings LLC, FRIT PINN LLC, FIT GSL LLC, Fortress Pinnacle Investment Fund, GCP SPV 1, 
LLC, GCP SPV 2, LLC, Greenhill Capital Partners, LLC, Abrams Capital Partners I, L.P., Abrams Capital Partners 11, L.P. 
and Whitecrest Partners, L.P., as selling shareholders 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

3 1.1 

3 1.2 

32.1 

(a) 
(b) 

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (Registration No. 001-16441) on May 30, 2007. 
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (Registration No. 001-16441) on June 29, 2007. 
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SIGNATURES 

by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf 

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL C O W .  

Date: August 8, 2007 

Date: August 8, 2007 

By: / s i  W. Benjamin Moreland 
W. Benjamin Moreland 

Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer) 

By: / s / R OB A. F ISHER 
Rob A. Fisher 

Vice President and Controller 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 
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Certification 
For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30,2007 
I, John P. Kelly, certify that: 

1. 

2 .  

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp. (“registrant”); 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material infomiation relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under 
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

3. 

4. 

b) 

c) 

d) 

5 .  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

a) 

b) 

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
intemal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 8, 2007 

/s/ John P. Kelly 
John P. Kelly 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31.2 

Certification 
For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30,2007 
I, W. Benjamin Moreland, certify that: 
1. 

2. 
I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp. (“registrant”); 
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report; 
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under 
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

3. 

4. 

b) 

c) 

d) 

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

a) 

b) 

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 8, 2007 

/ s i  W. Benjamin Moreland 
W. Beniamin Moreland 
Executfve Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.1 

Certification Pursuant to 

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form IO-Q of Crown Castle International Corp., a Delaware Corporation (“Company”), for the 
period ending June 30,2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (“Report”), each of the undersigned 
officers of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, that to the best of such officer’s knowledge: 

’ 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

1) 
2) 

the Report complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 
the Company as of March 3 1,2007 (the last date of the period covered by the Report). 

/ s i  John P. Kelly 
John P. Kelly 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
August 8,2007 

i s /  W. Benjamin Moreland 
W. Benjamin Moreland 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
August 8,2007 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Crown Castle 
International Corp. and will be retained by Crown Castle International Corp. and furnished lo the Securities and Exchange Commission or its 
staff upon request. 


